HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
FULL BOARD MEETING
March 23, 2023
7:00 P.M.
CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM #1
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA
OAKLAND, CA 94612

AGENDA

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
The public may observe or participate in this meeting in many ways.

OBSERVE:
* To observe, the public may view the televised video conference by viewing KTOP
channel 10 on Xfinity (Comcast) or ATT Channel 99 and locating City of Oakland
KTOP — Channel 10
* To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on the link below:
When: Mar 23, 2023 07:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)
Topic: HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD FULL
BOARD MEETING- March 23, 2023
Please click the link below to join the webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83848864122
Or One tap mobile :

US: +12532050468,,83848864122# or +12532158782,,83848864122#
Or Telephone:

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

US: +1 253 205 0468 or +1 253 215 8782 or +1 346 248 7799 or +1 669

444 9171 or +1 669 900 9128 or +1 719 359 4580 or +1 689 278 1000 or +1
301 715 8592 or +1 305 224 1968 or +1 309 205 3325 or +1 312 626 6799 or
+1 360 209 5623 or +1 386 347 5053 or +1 507 473 4847 or +1 564 217 2000
or +1 646 558 8656 or +1 646 931 3860
Webinar ID: 838 4886 4122

International numbers available: https://usO02web.zoom.us/u/ketMgOVnZ
The Zoom link is to view/listen to the meeting only, not for participation.

PARTICIPATION/COMMENT:

There is one way to submit public comments:

* To participate/comment during the meeting, you must attend in-person.
Comments on all agenda items will be taken during public comment at the
beginning of the meeting. Comments for items not on the agenda will be taken
during open forum towards the end of the meeting.

If you have any questions, please email hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov.

1

000001


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83848864122
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/ketMgOVnZ
mailto:hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD MEETING
1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL
3. PUBLIC COMMENT

a. Comments on all agenda items will be taken at this time. Comments
for items not on the agenda will be taken during open forum.

4. CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Board Minutes, 2/23/2023 (pp. 3-5)

5. APPEALS*
a. T19-0184, Beard v. Meridian Management Group (pp. 27-118)
b. T22-0078, Bolanos v. Wu (pp. 119-217)

6. RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND AMENDMENTS TO THE RENT
ADJUSTMENT REGULATIONS (pp. 6-26)

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
a. Board Member Check-In

8. OPEN FORUM

9. ADJOURNMENT

*Staff appeal summaries will be available at the Rent Program website and the Clerk’s office at least 72
hours prior to the meeting pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.080.C and 2.20.090

As a reminder, alternates in attendance (other than those replacing an absent board member) will
not be able to take any action, such as with regard to the consent calendar.

Accessibility: Contact us to request disability-related accommodations, American Sign
Language (ASL), Spanish, Cantonese, Mandarin, or another language interpreter at least
five (5) business days before the event. Rent Adjustment Program (RAP) staff can be
contacted via email at RAP@oaklandca.gov or via phone at (510) 238-3721. California
relay service at 711 can also be used for disability-related accommodations.

Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un
intérprete de en Espanol, Cantones, Mandarin o de lenguaje de sefias (ASL) por favor
envié un correo electronico a RAP@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-3721 o 711 por lo
menos cinco dias habiles antes de la reunién.

TERISEHBIERM, 5T, AU E EENBENERT, FEEBNAEIAEXE
#) RAP@oaklandca.gov S EE (510) 238-3721 5711 California relay service.

000002


mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov
mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov
mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD
FULL BOARD SPECIAL MEETING
February 23, 2023
5:00 P.M.
VIA ZOOM CONFERENCE
OAKLAND, CA

MINUTES
1. CALL TO ORDER
The Board meeting was administered via Zoom by H. Grewal, Housing and
Community Development Department. He explained the procedure for

conducting the meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order by Chair
Ingram at 5:03 p.m.

Harman Grewal
Victor Ramirez
Marguerita Fa-Kaji
Allison Pretto

Business Analyst Il (HCD)
Assistant Program Manager (RAP)
Hearing Officer (RAP)

Project Manager (RAP)

2. ROLL CALL
MEMBER STATUS PRESENT | ABSENT | EXCUSED
R. NICKENS, JR. | Tenant X
Vacant Tenant
J. DEBOER Tenant Alt. X
M. GOOLSBY Tenant Alt. X
D. INGRAM Undesignated X
C. OSHINUGA Undesignated X
E. TORRES Undesignated X
Vacant Undesignated
Alt.
Vacant Undesignated
Alt.
Vacant Landlord
Vacant Landlord
Vacant Landlord Alt.
K. SIMS Landlord Alt. X
Staff Present
Kent Qian Deputy City Attorney

Briana Lawrence-McGowan
Meadow Holmes

Administrative Analyst Il (RAP)
KTOP

000003



3. PUBLIC COMMENT
a. No members of the public spoke during public comment.

4. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

a. Member C. Oshinuga moved to re-elect Member Ingram as Board Chair and
to re-elect Member Oshinuga as Vice Chair. Member D. Ingram seconded
the motion.

The Board voted as follows:
Aye: D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, E. Torres, K. Sims

Nay: None
Abstain: M. Goolshy

The motion was approved.

5. CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Board Minutes, 2/9/2023: Chair Ingram moved to approve the
Board Minutes from 2/9/2023. Vice Chair Oshinuga seconded the motion.

The Board voted as follows:

Aye: D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, E. Torres, K. Sims
Nay: None
Abstain: M. Goolshy

The minutes were approved.

6. SCHEDULING AND REPORTS

a. Project Manager, Allison Pretto, gave a Rent Registry update to the Board.
Topics discussed included but were not limited to:

e Deadline to file
e Outreach & Workshops
e Consequences for Failure to Comply

7. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Introduction of RAP’s New Senior Hearing Officer: Victor Ramirez, RAP’s
Assistant Program Manager, announced and introduced Marguerita Fa-Kaji
as RAP’s new Senior Hearing Officer, effective March 2023.

000004



b. Pending Resolutions: Chair Ingram informed the Board that the pending
resolutions related to the Tenant Filing Requirements and Owner Filing
Requirements are being postponed in regard to providing
recommendations to City Council.

c. Return to In-Person Meetings: Chair Ingram and Administrative Analyst I,
Briana Lawrence-McGowan, reminded the Board that the 3/9 meeting has
been cancelled, and that the first in-person Board meeting is scheduled for
3/23/2023 at 7:00 pm in City Hall, Hearing Room 1. It was also announced
that members of the public can attend and view the meeting virtually,
however participation will only be allowed in-person. Parties of appeal
hearings and those who want to participate in public comment or open
forum will need to be present in-person.

d. Board Training Session—Role of the Board & Role of Board Members as
Public Officials—Quasi-Judicial, Policy, & Rule Making Responsibilities:
Deputy City Attorney Kent Qian administered a Board training session.
Topics discussed included but were not limited to:

e Board Members Adherence to Ethics Requirements

e Public Ethics Training and Resources

e Board Authority & Duties belong to the Board as a Whole
e Distinguishing Board Member Role or Personal Roles

e The Board as a Quasi-Judicial Body

e The Board as a Policy and Rulemaking Body

8. PROPOSED REGULATIONS TO IMPLEMENT EFFICIENCY ORDINANCE,
SEISMIC ORDINANCE, AND RENT REGISTRY ORDINANCE CHANGES

a. Deputy City Attorney Kent Qian introduced proposed regulations to the
Board to implement the efficiency ordinance, seismic ordinance, and rent
registry ordinance changes.

9. OPEN FORUM

a. James Vann from the Oakland Tenant’s Union spoke and stated that he
joined the meeting late, but wanted to know who was announced as RAP’s
new Senior Hearing Officer. Mr. Vann also reminded the Board that
members can be removed by the Mayor’s office.

10.ADJOURMENT
a. The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.

3

000005



Approved as to form and legality

CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE

CITY OF OAKLAND
HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND
RELOCATION BOARD (HRRRB)

RESOLUTION NO.

INTRODUCED BY BOARD CHAIR DENARD INGRAM

RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND AMENDMENT OF THE
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM REGULATIONS

WHEREAS, the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board may make
recommendations to the City Council or appropriate City Council committee pertaining to
Chapter 8.22 of the Oakland Municipal Code (O.M.C.) or City housing policy when requested to
do so by the City Council or when the Board otherwise acts to do so, pursuant to O.M.C. 8.22.040
D.4; and

WHEREAS, on January 22, 2019, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 13516, to
require mandatory seismic evaluation and retrofit of certain multifamily residential buildings; and

WHEREAS, in Ordinance No. 13516, the City Council directed the Rent Board to revise
the capital improvements amortization schedule in the Rent Program Regulations to provide an
amortization period for Mandatory Seismic Capital Improvements that conforms with the Rent
Board’s final motion passed during Item 5 of their July 9, 2015 meeting; and

WHEREAS, on June 21, 2022, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 13695, which
established a rent registry and requires evidence of registration before submitting an owner petition
or an owner response to a tenant petition; and now, therefore, be it

WHEREAS, Rent Adjustment Program Regulation Section 8.22.120.1. provides that if an
appellant fails to appear at an appeal hearing, the Board will consider the appeal dropped and will
issue a decision dismissing the appeal, subject to the appellant showing good cause for the failure
to appear; and

WHEREAS, Rent Adjustment Program Regulation section 8.22.120.D.2. provides that

3250172v1/KKQ

000006


qian9k
KQ sig


unless the Board or Appeal Panel votes otherwise, each party will have fifteen (15) minutes to
present argument on or in opposition to the appeal; and

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2020, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 13618
(Efficiency Ordinance), to among other things, streamline Rent Board meetings by allowing the
Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board (Rent Board) to limit argument time for each
party to six (6) minutes; and

WHEREAS, to make the appeal process more efficient and to minimize time commitment
for parties to appeals, the Rent Board wishes to make appearances at appeals voluntary and reduce
argument time to six (6) minutes per side; and

WHEREAS, Rent Adjustment Program Regulation section 8.22.100.B provides that of a
petitioner fails to appear at a properly noticed mediation, the Hearing Officer may dismiss the
case; and

WHEREAS, because mediations are voluntary, the Rent Board wishes to amend the
regulations to allow parties who miss a mediation the opportunity to receive a hearing on the
petition; and

WHEREAS, Rent Adjustment Program Regulation section 8.22.110.B provides that if a
petitioner fails to appear at a properly noticed hearing, the Hearing Officer may dismiss the case;

WHEREAS, Rent Adjustment Program Regulation section 8.22.110 does not currently
outline any good-cause relief for a party that fails to appear at a properly noticed hearing except
through the appeal process; and

WHEREAS, either party can potentially wait an extended period of time for a scheduled
appeal hearing just to address their good cause evidence, depending on the number of pending
petitions; and

WHEREAS, significant wait times for either party to be able to present their good-cause
evidence can, in some occasions, significantly impact the relief that can be granted by the Appeal
Body or by the Hearing Officer; and

WHEREAS, Rent Adjustment Program Regulation section 8.22.040 does not currently
address Alternate Board Members and their participation in scheduled Board meetings unless they
are filling in for regular members; and

WHEREAS, allow non-voting alternates to participate in board meetings would allow
alternates to learn about the Rent Board in a non-voting capacity; and

WHEREAS, Rent Adjustment Program Regulation section 8.22.090.B.1 provides that A

Tenant petition or response to an Owner petition is not considered filed unless the tenant submits
evidence that the tenant is current on rent or lawfully withholding rent; and

000007



WHEREAS, consistent with the Rent Board’s recommendation to City Council to remove
the current on rent requirement from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, the Rent Board wishes to
remove the requirement for the tenant be current on rent before filing a petition from the Rent
Adjustment Regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board seeks to ensure that all
covered Oakland tenants and property owners have equitable access to the protections and relief
provided by the Rent Adjustment Ordinance; now, therefore, be it

RESOLVED, That the Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board recommends the
City Council amend the Rent Adjustment Program Regulations by adopting the attached
amendments to the Rent Adjustment Regulations;

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Rent Board approves the attached Rent Adjustment
Regulation amendments and forwards the attached regulation amendments to City Council for
approval; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Rent Board authorizes the Chair or the Chair’s

designee to speak in support of the resolution on behalf of the Board at City Council or Committee
meetings.

APPROVED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE

AYES: HUDSON, NICKENS, OSHINUGA, TORRES, VIRAMONTES, WILLIAMS AND
CHAIRPERSON INGRAM
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTION:
ATTEST
Date: BRIANA LAWRENCE-MCGOWAN

Rent Adjustment Program, Housing
& Community Development
Department

000008



Proposed Amendments to the Rent Adjustment Regulations. (additions are shown as
double underline and deletions are shown as strikethrough):

8.22.040 THE BOARD.
A. Meetings

1. Notice. Meetings shall be noticed and the agenda posted in accordance with the Ralph M.
Brown Act (California Government Code Sections 54950, et. seq. (“Brown Act”) and Sunshine
Ordinance (OMC Chapter 2.20).)

2. Regular Meetings. The Board or an Appeal Panel shall meet regularly on the second and
fourth Thursdays of each month, unless cancelled. Rent Program staff is authorized to schedule
these regular meetings either for the full Board or for an Appeal Panel.

3. Special Meetings. Meetings called by the Mayor or City Administrator, or meetings scheduled
by the Board for a time and place other than regular meetings are to be designated Special
Meetings. The agenda of Special Meetings shall be restricted to those matters for which the
meeting was originally called and no additional matters may be added to the agenda.

4. Adjourned or Rescheduled Meetings. A meeting may be adjourned to a time and place to
complete the agenda if voted by the Board members present. A rescheduled meeting may be
held when a quorum cannot be convened for a regular meeting or when a quorum votes to
substitute another time and/or place for a scheduled meeting. Notice of change of meeting time
and/or place shall be sent to the City Clerk and absent Board members and provided in
accordance with the Brown Act and Sunshine Ordinance.

5. Time of Meetings. Board meetings shall start at 7 p.m. and end by 10:00 p.m. unless some
other time is set in advance or the meeting is extended by a vote of the Board.

6. Location of Meetings. The Board meetings shall be held at City Hall, One Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, Oakland, CA 94612, unless otherwise designated.

7. Agenda. The agenda for each meeting shall be posted at such time and places as required by
the Brown Act and Sunshine Ordinance.

8. Board meetings shall be conducted in accordance with “Robert’s Rules of Order (Revised),”
unless modified by these Regulations, requirements of the Brown Act or Sunshine Ordinance, or
the Board.

9. Open to Public. The meetings shall be open to the public in accordance with the Brown Act
and the Sunshine Ordinance, except for circumstances where the Brown Act or Sunshine
Ordinance permits the Board to address a matter in closed session, such as litigation or
personnel matters.

10. Board Vacations. The Board may schedule dates during the year when no regular Board
meetings may be held so that the entire Board may take vacations. The Board must schedule

1

000009



vacation times at least two (2) months prior to the date of the vacation time.

11. Alternate Board Members. Alternate board members may participate in discussion and
deliberations, but will only be allowed to vote when filling in for a regular member who is not
present or has been excused from consideration of or voting on a matter by the Board.

B. Quorum and Voting
1. Four Board members constitutes a quorum of the Board.

2. Decisions of the Board. For the Board to make a decision on the first time a matter comes
before the Board, the quorum must include at least one of each of the three categories of Board
members (Tenant, residential rental property Owner, and one who is neither of the foregoing). If
a matter cannot be decided because at least one of each of the three categories of Board
members is not present, the matter will be considered a second time at a future meeting where
the matter can be decided even if at least one member from each category is not present. A
majority of the Board members present are required to make decisions, provided a quorum is
present and sufficient members of each category are present.

3. A Board member who does not participate in a matter because of a conflict of interest or
incompatible employment neither counts towards a quorum nor in calculating the number of
Board members required to make a majority.

4. Special voting requirements for Just Cause for Eviction regulations enacted as part of partial
settlement of Kim v. City of Oakland, Alameda County Superior Court Case No. RG03081362
(the "Settlement Regulations").

a. The special voting requirements set out in this subsection apply only to the Just Cause
for Eviction regulations set out in Exhibit A.

b. The Settlement Regulations may be amended only by affirmative vote of at least five
(5) members of the Rent Board, provided that at least one member from each class of Rent
Board members (homeowner, landlord, and tenant) affirmatively votes to modify the Settlement
Regulations.

c. Before the Board adopts any amendments to the Settlement Regulations, the Board
must introduce the proposed amendments at a meeting, hold a public hearing at which
members of the public and interested organizations, including the Rental Housing Association
of Northern Alameda County, Inc. and Just Cause Oakland, are noticed, and the amendments
can only be considered for adoption at a subsequent meeting.

d. After the introduction of proposed amendments to the Settlement Regulations, if the
Board decides to further consider the adoption of the regulations and sets a public hearing to do
so, the Board must also transmit the proposed amendments to the appropriate committee of the
City Council so the City Council may have the option of commenting on or holding its own
hearing before the Rent Board votes to adopt or reject the proposed amendments. If the Council
elects not to comment on the proposed amendments or does not comment on them within 9o
days after transmittal of the proposed amendments by the Rent Board, the Rent Board may

000010



proceed to vote on the proposed amendments.
C. Officers

1. The Board shall select a Chair from among the Board members who are neither tenants nor
residential rental property owners. Each Appeal Panel shall be chaired by the member of that
panel who is neither a tenant nor a residential rental property owner.

2. The Board may also select a Vice-Chair (who is neither a Tenant nor an Owner) to act as Chair
in the Chair’s absence.

3. The Officers shall serve one-year terms.

4. The Board shall elect Officers each year at the second meeting in February.
5. The Chair votes on matters as any other Board member.

D. Standing Committees

The Board may establish standing committees subject to prior approval of the City Council. A
request to create a standing committee must include:

1. The staffing costs for the committee; and

2. The costs of complying with meeting noticing requirements.
8.22.090 PETITION AND RESPONSE FILING PROCEDURES.

A. Filing Deadlines

In order for a document to meet the filing deadlines prescribed by OMC Chapter 8.22.090,
documents must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program offices no later than 5 PM on the
date the document is due. A postmark is not sufficient to meet the requirements of OMC
Chapter 8.22.090. Additional Regulations regarding electronic and facsimile filing will be
developed when these filing methods become available at the Rent Adjustment Program.

B. Tenant Petition and Response Requirements

1. A Tenant petition or response to an Owner petition is not considered filed until the following
has been submitted:

b. A substantially completed petition or response on the form prescribed by the Rent
Adjustment Program, signed under oath; and

c. For Decreased Housing Services claims, organized documentation clearly showing the
3

000011



Housing Service decreases claimed and the claimed value of the services, and detailing the
calculations to which the documentation pertains. Copies of documents should be submitted
rather than originals. All documents submitted to the Rent Adjustment Program become
permanent additions to the file.

d. Proof of service by first-class mail or in person of the tenant petition or response and
any supporting documents on the owner.

2. Subtenant petitions described by Regulation 8.22.025 and Primary Tenant responses to them
are subject to the tenant petition and response requirements in this section.

C. Owner Petition and Response Requirements

1. An Owner’s petition or response to a petition is not considered filed until the following has
been submitted:

a. Evidence that the Owner has paid his or her City of Oakland Business License Tax;
b. Evidence that the Owner has paid his or her Rent Program Service Fee;
C.

i. Evidence that the Owner has provided written notice, to all Tenants affected by the
petition or response, of the existence and scope of the Rent Adjustment Program as required by
OMC 8.22.060. For purposes of filing a petition or response, a statement that the Owner has
provided the required notices is sufficient, but is subject to challenge at the hearing;

ii. After July 1, 2023, evidence of registration with the Rent Adjustment Program as
required by O.M.C. 8.22.510 for each affected covered unit in the building prior to the petition
or response being filed;

d. A substantially completed petition or response on the form prescribed by the Rent
Adjustment Program, signed under oath;

e. Organized documentation clearly showing the Rent increase justification and detailing
the calculations to which the documentation pertains. Copies of documents should be submitted
rather than originals. All documents submitted to the Rent Adjustment Program become
permanent additions to the file; and

f. Proof of service by first-class mail or in person of the owner petition or response and
any supporting documents on the tenants of all units affected by the petition. Supporting
documents that exceed twenty-five (25) pages are exempt from the service requirement,
provided that: (1) the owner petition form must be served by first-class mail or in person; (2) the
petition or attachment to the petition must indicate that additional documents are or will be
available at the Rent Adjustment Program; and (3) the owner must provide a paper copy of
supporting documents to the tenant or the tenant’s representative within ten (10) days if a
tenant requests a paper copy in the tenant’s response.

000012



2. Primary tenant responses to subtenant petitions described by Regulation 8.22.025 are
not subject to the Owner response requirements in this section.

D. Time of Hearing and Decision
1. The time frames for hearings and decisions set out below are repeated from OMC 8.22.110 D.

2. The Hearing Officer shall have the goal of hearing the matter within sixty (60) days of the
original petition's filing date.

3. The Hearing Officer shall have a goal of rendering a decision within sixty (60) days after the
conclusion of the hearing or the close of the record, whichever is later.

E. Designation of Representative

Parties have the right to be represented by the person of their choice. A Representative does not
have to be a licensed attorney. Representatives must be designated in writing by the party.
Notices and correspondence from the Rent Adjustment Program will be sent to representatives
as well as parties so long as a written Designation of Representative has been received by the
Rent Adjustment Program at least ten (10) days prior to the mailing of the notice or
correspondence. Parties are encouraged to designate their representatives at the time of filing
their petition or response whenever possible.

8.22.100 MEDIATION OF RENT DISPUTES.
A. Availability of Mediation

Voluntary mediation of Rent disputes will be available to all parties participating in Rent
adjustment proceedings after the filing of a petition and response. Mediation will only be
conducted in those cases in which all parties agree in advance to an effort to mediate the
dispute.

B. Procedures

1. Parties who desire mediation shall have the choice between the use of Rent Adjustment
Program Staff Hearing Officers acting as mediators or the selection of an outside mediator. Staff
Hearing Officers shall be made available to conduct mediations free of charge. The Rent
Adjustment Program will develop a list of available outside mediators for those who do not wish
to have Staff Hearing Officers mediate rent disputes. Any fees charged by an outside mediator
for mediation of rent disputes will be the responsibility of the parties requesting the use of their
services.

2. The following rules apply to mediations conducted by Staff Hearing Officers and notices
regarding the scheduling of a mediation session shall explain the following:

a. Participation in a mediation session is voluntary;

b. A request by any party for a hearing on the petition instead of the mediation session

000013



received prior to or during the scheduled mediation will be granted. Such a request will be
immediately referred to the Rent Adjustment Program and a hearing on the petition will be
scheduled;

c. Written notice of the mediation session shall be served on the parties by the Rent
Adjustment Program in accordance with OMC 8.22.110.

d. It is the goal to have the mediation scheduled within the first 30 days after the
response to the petition is filed.

e. Absence Of Parties. If either party fails to appear for a properly noticed mediation, the
Hearing Officer will refer the matter to the Rent Adjustment Program for administrative review
or hearing on the petition, whichever is appropriate.

3. The following rules apply to mediations conducted by outside mediators and notices
regarding the scheduling of a mediation session shall explain the following:

a. Participation in a mediation session is voluntary;

b. The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule the mediation; the parties will be
responsible for scheduling the mediation between themselves and the mediator and for
notifying the Rent Adjustment Program of the time and date for the mediation;

c. A request by any party for a hearing on the petition instead of the mediation session
received prior to or during the scheduled mediation will be granted. Such a request will be
immediately referred to the Rent Adjustment Program and an administrative hearing will be
scheduled. In the event that the responding party fails to appear for the mediation session, the
case will be referred back to the Rent Adjustment Program for administrative review and or
hearing on the petition, whichever is appropriate.

d. In the event that the-petitioningeither party fails to appear for the mediation session,
the case will be referred back to the Rent Adjustment Program for administrative dismissal of
the petition.

4. The Regulations regarding representation by an agent and translation apply to mediations.

5. If the parties fail to settle the rent dispute through the mediation process after a good faith
effort, a hearing on the petition will be scheduled on a priority basis with a Staff Hearing Officer.
If the mediation was conducted by a Staff Hearing Officer, the hearing on the petition will be
conducted by a different Hearing Officer.

6. If the parties reach an agreement during the mediation, a written mediation agreement will be
6

000014



prepared immediately by the mediator and signed by the parties at the conclusion of the
mediation. To the extent possible, mediation agreements shall be self-enforcing. The Hearing
Officer will issue an order corresponding to the mediated agreement and signed by the parties
that either dismisses the petition or grants the petition according to terms set out in the
mediation agreement.

7. A settlement agreement reached by the parties will become a part of the record of the
proceedings on the petition unless the parties otherwise agree.

8. The parties cannot agree to grant an Owner a permanent exemption of for dwelling unit.
Permanent exemption claims must be decided by a Hearing Officer after a hearing on the
evidence.

C. Postponements of Mediations Before Hearing Officers

1. A Hearing Officer or designated Staff member may grant a postponement of the mediation
only for good cause shown and in the interests of justice. A party may be granted only one
postponement for good cause, unless the party shows extraordinary circumstances.

2. “Good cause" includes but is not limited to:

a. Verified illness of a party an attorney or other authorized representative of a party or
material witness of the party;

b. Verified travel plans scheduled before the receipt of notice of hearing;

c. Any other reason that makes it impractical to appear at the scheduled mediation date
due to unforeseen circumstances or verified prearranged plans that cannot be changed. Mere
inconvenience or difficulty in appearing shall not constitute "good cause".

3. A request for a postponement of a mediation must be made in writing at the earliest date
possible after receipt of the notice of mediation with supporting documentation attached.

4. Parties may mutually agree to a postponement at any time. When the parties have agreed to a
postponement, the Rent Adjustment Program office must be notified in writing at the earliest
date possible prior to the date set for the mediation.

8.22.110 HEARING PROCEDURE.
A. Postponements

1. A Hearing Officer or designated Staff member may grant a postponement of the hearing only
for good cause shown and in the interests of justice. A party may be granted only one
postponement for good cause, unless the party shows extraordinary circumstances.

2. “Good cause" includes but is not limited to: a. Verified illness of a party an attorney or other
authorized representative of a party or material witness of the party; b. Verified travel plans

scheduled before the receipt of notice of hearing; c¢. Any other reason that makes it impractical
to appear at the scheduled date due to unforeseen circumstances or verified prearranged plans

000015



that cannot be changed. Mere inconvenience or difficulty in appearing shall not constitute "good
cause".

3. A request for a postponement of a hearing must be made in writing at the earliest date
possible after receipt of the notice of hearing with supporting documentation attached.

4. Parties may mutually agree to a postponement at any time. When the parties have agreed to a
postponement, the Rent Adjustment Program office must be notified in writing at the earliest
date possible prior to the date set for the hearing.

B. Absence Of Parties

1. If a petitioner fails to appear at a properly noticed hearing, the Hearing Officer may, in the
Hearing Officer’s discretion, dismiss the case, subject to the petitioner showing good cause for

the failure to appear.

a. Any excuse for failing to appear, along with supporting documentation, must be
submitted to the Hearing Officer within ten (10) days of service of the hearing decision.

b. The Hearing Officer will determine if the excuse represents a prima facie case of
good cause based on the standards for failing to appear at a hearing and any Board decisions
interpreting good cause for failure to appear.

C. If the petitioner submits a timely application under subsection (a), the time to
appeal the Hearing Decision is extended until fifteen (15) days after service of the Hearing
Officer’s decision on good cause for failure to appear.

2. If a respondent fails to appear, the Hearing Officer may rule against the respondent, or
proceed to a hearing on the evidence.

C. Record Of Proceedings

1. All proceedings before a Hearing Officer or the Rent Board, except mediation sessions, shall
be recorded by tape or other mechanical means. A party may order a duplicate or transcript of
the tape recording of any hearing provided that the party ordering the duplicate or transcript
pays for the expense of duplicating or transcribing the tape.

2. Any party desiring to employ a court reporter to create a record of a proceeding, except a
mediation session, is free to do so at their own expense, provided that the opportunity to obtain
copies of any transcript are offered to the Rent Adjustment Program and to the opposing party.

D. Translation

Translation services for documents, procedures, hearings and mediations in languages other
than English pursuant to the Equal Access to Services ordinance (O.M.C. Chapter 2.3) shall be
made available to persons requesting such services subject to the City's ability to provide such
services. In the event that the City is unable to provide such services, petitioners and
respondents who do not speak or are not comfortable with English must provide their own
translators. The translators will be required to take an oath that they are fluent in both English

8

000016



and the relevant foreign language and that they will fully and to the best of their ability translate
the proceedings.

E. Conduct Of Hearings Before Hearing Officers

1. Each party, attorney, other representative of a party or witness appearing at the hearing shall
complete a written Notice of Appearance and oath, as appropriate, that will be submitted to the
Hearing Officer at the commencement of the hearing. All Notices of Appearance shall become
part of the record.

2. All oral testimony must be given under oath or affirmation to be admissible.
3. Each party shall have these rights:

a. To call and examine witnesses;

b. To introduce exhibits;

c. To cross-examine opposing witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues even if that
issue was not raised on direct examination;

d. To impeach any witness regardless of which party called first called him or her to
testify;

e. To rebut the evidence against him or her;

f. To cross-examine an opposing party or their agent even if that party did not testify on
his or her own behalf or on behalf of their principal.

4. Unless otherwise specified in these Regulations or OMC Chapter 8.22, the rules of evidence
applicable to administrative hearings contained in the California Administrative Procedures Act
(California Government Code Section 11513) shall apply.

F. Decisions Of The Hearing Officer

1. The Hearing Officer shall make written findings of fact and issue a written decision on
petitions filed.

2. If an increase in Rent is granted, the Hearing Officer shall state the amount of increase that is
justified, and the effective date of the increase.

3. If a decrease in Rent is granted, the Hearing Officer shall state when the decrease
commenced, the nature of the service decrease, the value of the decrease in services, and the
amount to which the rent may be increased when the service is restored. When the service is
restored, any Rent increase based on the restoration of service may only be taken following a
valid change of terms of tenancy notice pursuant to California Civil Code Section 827. A Rent
increase for restoration of decreased Housing Services is not considered a Rent increase for
purposes of the limitation on one Rent increase in twelve (12) months pursuant to OMC
8.22.070 A. (One Rent Increase Each Twelve Months).

000017



4. The Hearing Officer may order Rent adjustment for overpayments or underpayments over a
period of months, however, such adjustments shall not span more than a twelve (12) month
period, unless longer period is warranted for extraordinary circumstances. The following is a
schedule of adjustments for underpayment and overpayments that Hearing Officers must follow
unless the parties otherwise agree or good cause is shown:

a. If the underpayment or overpayment is 25% of the Rent or less, the Rent will be
adjusted over 3 months;

b. If the underpayment or overpayment is 50% of the Rent or less, the Rent will be
adjusted over 6 months;

c. If the underpayment or overpayment is 75% of the Rent or less, the Rent will be
adjusted over 9 months;

d. If the underpayment or overpayment is 100% of the Rent or more, the Rent will be
adjusted over 12 months.

5. For Rent overpayments based on an Owner’s failure to reduce Rent after the expiration of the
amortization period for a Capital Improvement, the decision shall also include a calculation of
any interest that may be due pursuant to Reg. 10.2.5 (see Appendix A).

6. If the Landlord has petitioned for multiple capital improvements covering the same unit
or building, the Hearing Officer may consolidate the capital improvements into a single
amortization period and, in the Hearing Officer's discretion, determine the length for that
amortization period in the Decision.

G. Administrative Decisions

For rent increase petitions based on one or more additional occupants, if there is no genuine
dispute regarding any material fact, the petition may be decided as a matter of law, and the
tenant waives their right to a hearing in writing on a form provided by the Rent Adjustment
Program, the Hearing Officer shall issue a decision without a hearing.

8.22.120 APPEALS.

A. Statement of Grounds for Appeal and Supporting Documentation

1. A party who appeals a decision of a Hearing Officer or administrative decision must clearly
state the grounds for the appeal on the appeal form or an attachment. The grounds for appeal
must be stated sufficiently clearly for the responding party, and the Board to reasonably
determine the basis for the appeal so that the responding party can adequately respond and the
Board can adequately adjudicate the appeal.

2. A party who files an appeal must file any supporting argument and documentation and serve
it on the opposing party within fifteen (15) days of filing the appeal along with a proof of service
10

000018



on the opposition party.

3. A party responding to an appeal must file any response to the appeal and any supporting
documentation and serve it on the opposing party within fifteen (15) days of the service of-the
supporting documentation along with a proof of service on the opposing party.

4. Any argument and supporting documentation may not be any more than twenty-five (25)
pages. Arguments must be legible and double-spaced if typed. Any submissions not conforming
to these requirements may be rejected by Staff. Staff may limit the pages for argument and
supporting documentation submitted in consolidated cases.

5. Staff, in its discretion, may modify or waive the above requirements for good cause. The good
cause must be provided in writing by the party seeking a waiver or modification.

B. Grounds for Appeal

The grounds on which a party may appeal a decision of a Hearing Officer include, but are not
limited to, the following;:

1. The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, the Regulations, or prior decisions of the
Board;

2. The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers;
3. The decision raises a new policy issue that has not previously been decided by the Board;
4. The decision violates federal, state, or local law;

5. The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. Where a party claims the decision is
not supported by substantial evidence, the party making this claim has the burden to ensure that
sufficient record is before the Board to enable the Board to evaluate the party’s claim;

6. The Hearing Officer made a procedural error that denied the party sufficient opportunity to
adequately present his or her claim or to respond to the opposing party; or

7. The decision denies the Owner a fair return.

a. This appeal ground may only be used by an Owner when his or her underlying petition
for approval of a rent increase was based on a fair return claim.

b. Where an Owner claims the decision denies a fair return, the Owner must specifically
state on the appeal form the basis for the claim, including any calculations, and the legal basis
for the claim.

C. Postponements

1. The Board or Staff may grant a postponement of the appeal hearing only for good cause shown
and in the interests of justice. A party may be granted only one postponement for good cause,
unless the party shows extraordinary circumstances.

11

000019



2. “Good cause" shall include but is not limited to:

a. Verified illness of a party an attorney or other authorized representative of a party or
material witness of the party;

b. Verified travel plans scheduled before the receipt of notice of hearing;

c. Any other reason that makes it impractical to appear at the scheduled date due to
unforeseen circumstances or verified prearranged plans that cannot be changed. Mere
inconvenience or difficulty in appearing shall not constitute "good cause".

3. A request for a postponement of an appeal hearing must be made in writing at the earliest
date possible after receipt of the notice of appeal hearing with supporting documentation
attached.

4. Parties may mutually agree to a postponement at any time. When the parties have agreed to a
postponement, the Rent Adjustment Program office must be notified in writing at the earliest
date possible prior to the date for the appeal hearing.

D. Procedures at Appeal Hearings
1. It is the Board’s or Appeal Panel’s goal to hear three (3) appeals per meeting.

2. Unless the Board or Appeal Panel votes otherwise, or the Appeal Body Chair establishes an

alternate time limit prior to the first appeal being heard by the Appeal Body, each party will have
fifteen{15) six (6) minutes to present argument on or in opposition to the appeal. This time

includes opening argument and any response.

3. Whenever the Board or Appeal Panel considers an appeal at more than one meeting, any
Board member not present at a prior hearing must listen to a tape of the prior hearing in order
to participate at a subsequent hearing.

4. Only those grounds presented in the written appeal may be argued before the Board or the
Appeal Panel.

E. Record Of Proceedings

1. All proceedings before the Rent Board shall be recorded by tape or other mechanical means. A
party may order a duplicate or transcript of the tape recording of any appeal hearing provided
that the party ordering the duplicate or transcript pays for the expense of duplicating or
transcribing the tape.

2. Any party desiring to employ a court reporter to create a record of a proceeding, except a
mediation session, is free to do so at their own expense, provided that the opportunity to obtain
copies of any transcript are offered to the Rent Adjustment Program and to the opposing party.

F. Evidentiary Hearings
1. As a general rule, the Board and Appeal Panels should not conduct evidentiary hearings.
12

000020



When the Board or Appeal Panel determines that additional evidence or reconsideration of
evidence is necessary, the Board or Appeal Panel should remand the matter back to a Hearing
Officer for consideration of evidence.

2. The Board or Appeal Panel should only consider evidence when the evidence is limited in
scope and resolution of the matter is more efficient than having it remanded to a Hearing Officer
for consideration of the evidence.

3. In order for new evidence to be considered, the party offering the new evidence must show
that the new evidence could not have been available at the Hearing Officer proceedings.

4. If the Board or Appeal Panel deems an evidentiary hearing necessary, the appeal will be
continued and the Board will issue a written order setting forth the issues on which the parties
may present evidence.

5. The parties must file any new documentary evidence with the Board or Appeal Panel and also
serve it the opposing party not more than ten (10) days after notice is given that a date has been
set for the evidentiary appeal hearing.

a. Parties must also file with the Rent Program proofs of service of the evidence on the
opposing party.

b. Failure to file the evidence and the proofs of service may result in the evidence not
being considered by the Board or Appeal Panel.

6. When the Board or Appeal Panel conducts an evidentiary hearing, the same rules will apply as
to hearings before Hearing Officers.

G. Appeal Decisions

1. Vote Required. Provided a quorum of the Board is present, or all three Appeal Panel members
if a matter is being heard by an Appeal Panel, a majority vote of the Board members present is
required to overturn or modify a Hearing Officer’s decision. A tie vote upholds the Hearing
Officer’s decision. If no Board member makes a motion to uphold, reverse, or modify the
Hearing Officer’s decision on appeal or no motion receives a second, the appeal is deemed
denied without comment.

2. Vote at Close of Appeal Hearing. Unless the Board or Appeal Panel votes otherwise, it shall
vote on each appeal at the close of the appeal. The motion should include the reasons for the
decisions so that the reasons can be set forth in a written decision.

a. Form of Decision. An appeal decision must be in writing and include findings and
conclusions.

b. Time for Written Decision. The Board has the goal of issuing a written decision within
thirty (30) days of the close of the appeal hearing.

c¢. Final decision.

13

000021



i. Written appeal decisions are drafted by Staff, reviewed by the City
Attorney, signed by staff as the Board’s designee, and served on the parties.

il. In any individual matter, however, the Board or Appeal Panel may vote to
require that a decision first come to the full Board or full Appeal Panel or to the Board or
Appeal Panel Chair for final approval and signature of that Chair. A decision is not final
until signed by Staff or the Board or Appeal Panel Chair and served on the parties.

d. Inits decision, the Board is authorized to designate a schedule for refunds or
repayments consistent with Reg. 8.22.110 F.4 in cases where its decision results in under- or
over-payments by a party; alternatively, the Board may remand to the Hearing Officer for
purposes of devising a refund or repayment plan.

e. Staff shall serve decisions on the parties.

H. Dismissal of Appeal
1. Untimely appeal filing.
a. Staff may dismiss an appeal that is not timely filed.

b. Within ten (10) days following Staff’s notice of the dismissal, the party filing the
late appeal may submit a written statement explaining any good cause for the late filing.

c. If the good cause appears within the guidelines for acceptable good cause set out
in Rent Board decisions, Staff may reinstate the appeal or set a hearing before the Board on
whether there is good cause for the late appeal.

d. If the good cause does not appear within the acceptable good cause parameters,
Staff may reject the good cause and affirm the appeal dismissal.

2. Failing to adequately state grounds for appeal.

a. If Staff determines that an appeal fails to adequately state the grounds for appeal,
Staff will send a deficiency notice to the appellant notifying the appellant of the deficiency and
giving the appellant ten (10) days to correct the deficiency.

b. If the appellant fails to respond to the deficiency notice or fails to correct the
deficiency in the response, Staff may dismiss the appeal, or ask the Rent Board to determine the
adequacy of the appeal.

. Failure to Appear

1. Appellant. If an appellant fails to appear at an appeal hearing, the Board or Appeal Panel will
demde the aggeal on the record as submltted eeﬁs&der—theﬁappeal—dfepped—aﬂdﬁﬂll—tss&e—&

000022



2. Responding party. If the responding party fails to appear, the Board or Appeal Panel must
still hear and decide the appeal.

15

000023



Appendix A

Exhibit 1

Amortization

Schedule

IMPROVEMENT YEARS IMPROVEMENT YEARS

Air Conditioners 10 | Heating
Appliances Central 10
Refrigerator 5 Gas 10
Stove 5 Electric 10
Garbage Disposal 5 Solar 10
Water Heater 5 | Insulation 10

Dishwasher 5 | Landscaping

Microwave Oven 5 Planting 10
Washer/Dryer 5 Sprinklers 10
Fans 5 Tree Replacement 10

Cabinets 10 | Lighting
Carpentry 10 Interior 10
Counters 10 Exterior 10
Doors 10 | Locks 5
Knobs 5 | Mailboxes 10
Screen Doors 5 | Meters 10

Earthquake Expenses Plumbing
Architectural and Engineering 5 Fixtures 10
Fees
16

000024




Emergency Services

Pipe Replacement

10

Clean Up 5 Re-Pipe Entire Building 20
Fencing and Security 5 Shower Doors 5
Management 5 | Painting
Tenant Assistance 5 Interior 5
Structural Repair and Exterior 5
Retrofitting
Foundation Repair 10 | Paving
Foundation Replacement 20 Asphalt 10
Foundation Bolting 20 Cement 10
Iron or Steel Work 20 Decking 10
Masonry-Chimney Repair 20 | Plastering 10
Shear Wall Installation 10 | Pumps
Mandatory Seismic Retrofit 25 Sump 10
Electrical Wiring 10 | Railing 10
Elevator 20 | Roofing
Fencing and Security Shingle/Asphalt 10
Chain 10 Built-Up, Tar, and Gravel 10
Block 10 Tile and Linoleum 10
Wood 10 Gutters/Downspouts 10
Fire Alarm System 10 | Security
Fire Sprinkler System 20 Entry Telephone Intercom 10
Fire Escape 10 Gates/Doors 10
Flooring/Floor Covering Fencing 10
17

000025




Hardwood 10 Alarms 10
Tile and Linoleum 5 | Sidewalks/Walkways 10
Carpet 5 | Stairs 10
Carpet Pad 5 | Stucco 10
Subfloor 10 | Tilework 10
Fumigation Wallpaper 5
Tenting 5 | Window Coverings
Furniture 5 Drapes 5
Automatic Garage Door 10 Shades 5
Openers
Gates Screens 5
Chain Link 10 Awnings 5
Wrought Iron 10 Blinds/Miniblinds 5
Wood 10 Shutters 5
Glass
Windows 5
Doors 5
Mirrors 5
18

000026




CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT

Case No.: T19-0184
Case Name: Beard v. Meridian Management Group
Property Address: 1470 Alice Street, Oakland, CA 94612

Parties: James Beard (Tenant)
Nancy Conway (Tenant Representative)
Russel Flynn, Meridian Management Group (Owner)
Greg McConnell (Owner Representative)

TENANT APPEAL.:

Activity Date

Tenant Petition filed February 4, 2019
Notice of Violation Submitted February 4, 2019
Owner Response filed July 18, 2019

Tenant Additional Documents submitted  September 3, 2019

Owner’s Memorandum September 10, 2019
Administrative Decision mailed September 19, 2019
Tenant Appeal filed October 8, 2019

000027



Appeal Hearing date

Appeal Decision mailed

Owner Supplemental Documentation

Remand Hearing date

Remand Decision mailed

Tenant Appeal submitted

Owner Response to Appeal submitted

January 23, 2020

August 13, 2020

November 9, 2021

June 21, 2022

October 6, 2022

October 26, 2022

November 18, 2022

000028



-

F N

{

1010%/4 IUMIMA

oy ¥
REHT AR

- CITY OF OAKLAND

CITY OF OAKLAND " |
RENT ADJUSTMENT 1?110(;121@3/}q EB -l P Ish '
P.O. Box 70243
_Oakland CA 94612- 0243
(510) 238 3721

For date stamp

Please Fill Out This This Form As Completely As You Can. Fallure to prov1de needed mformatlon may
result in your petition bemg rejected or delayed _

- TENANT PETITION |

oA w%;»

4‘&%3‘% Frean(Se-0r e

4404

Email: -

Please print lgibly - :

‘Y'ourvName Rental Address (with zip code) | Telephone: - .
[lames 1470 Biieest B206 510 -289- 530
. -mail:’

Reorg ojeland, s AMe(L [P

¥our Representative’s Name - "Mailing Address (with zip code) Telepllone ,,,, ' | {\f @
(Y a6 Vranlin 51 [ HIS-24i-]

I | it Email:

Conwi iy H’éa% Sd Pynr Naocg @ ¢aedes b iy
l’roperty Owney(s) name(s) . Mailing Address (with zip code) Telephone:

Rugse WWE Bugh s+ Li/S*%‘*i J&‘C 7

Ema11
) Aoy Franseds ¢

Py a4)pa o
Property Manager or Management Co Maﬂmg Address (with zip code) Telephone:

(i applicable) “L}i @ \) IN cl

]\i\ﬂq g} PN @f”t a%ﬁ{fﬂ%x 5 Bush 53

Number of umts on the property 5

Type of unit you rent B ”Xi)artment, Room, orJ
(check one) Q House ;| Condomlmum _ _ Live-Work
Are you current on g w"”

your rént? (cheek one) B @7y Q- No

If you are not current on your rent, please explain. (If you are legally w1thholdmg rent state what if any, hab1tab111ty wolanons exist in

your unit, )

I._GROUNDS FOR PETITION: Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. For all of the

grounds for a petition see OMC 8.22.070 and OMC 8.22.090. I (We) contest one or more rent increases on
one or more of the followmg grounds:

(a) The CPI and/or banked rent increase notice I was given was calculated incorrectly.

(b) The increasé(s) exceed(s) the CPI Adjustment and is (are) unjustified or is (are) greater than 10%.

rent increase.

(c) Ireceived arent increase notice before the property owner received approval from the Rent Adjustment
Program for such an increase and the rent increase exceeds the CPI Adjustment and the available banked

Rev. 731/17

For more information phone (510) 238-3721.

000029




(d) No written notlce of Rent Program was given to me together with the notice of mcrease(s) Tam
contesting. (Only for increases noticed after July 26, 2000. )

() The property owner did not give me the required form “N otice of the Rent Adjustment Program” at least
6 months before the effective date of the rent increase(s).

(f) The rent increase notice(s) was (were) not given to me in compliance with State law.

() The increase I am contesting is the second increase in my rent in a 12-month period.

(h) There is a current health, safety, fire, or building code violation in my unit, or there ate serious problems
\/ with the conditions in the unit because the owner falled to. do requested repair and mamtenance (Complete
| Section III on following page)

},1) The owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I received prev10usly oris chargmg me for
Vs services or1g1na11y paid by the owner. (OMC 8.22.070(F): A decrease in housing services is considered an
- | increase in rent. A tenant may petition for a rent adJustment based on a decrease in housing services.).
(Complete Section I1I on following page)

(1)- My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for a Capltal Improvement had expired.

(k) The proposed rent increase would exceed an overall increase of 30% in 5 years. (The 5 -year period
begins with rent increases noticed on or after August 1, 2014).

-| () I wish fo contest an exemption from the Rent Adlustment Ordmance because the exemption was “based on
fraud or mistake. (OMC 8.22, Article I) - 1

(m) The owner did not give me a summary of the justification(s) for the increase despite my Wntten request

-1 (n) The rent was ra13ed_ illegally after the unit was vacated as set .forthiunder OMC 8.22.080.

; VII RENTAL HISTORY: (You must complete thls sectlon)

Date you moved into the Unit: ‘ %m ) g - P)@}“’{ Imtlal Rent: §_ [ ‘-{(90 2 0 0 __/month |

When did the owner first provide you with the RAP NOTICE, a written NOTICE TO TENAN TS of the
existence of the Rent Adjustment Program? Date: ?,m ] S ~ LA . Ifnever provided enter “Never.”

Is your rent subsidized Or controlled by any government agency, including HUD (Sectlon 8)? Yes '_No

List all rent increases that you want to challenge. Begin with the most recent and work backwards i
you need additional space, please attach another sheet. If you never received the RAP Notice you can
" contest all past increases. You must check “Yes” next to each increase that you are challenging.

Date you - Date increase Monthly rent increase Are' you Contesting Did You Receive tl
received the goes into effect . this Increase in this Rent Program |
notice (mo/day/year) - |- : Petition?* | Notice With the
" (mo/day/year) | From. To Notice Of
P IngrefSe?
: : pe _ $ )y 3 $ )6, @fes . ONo es UONo
-o2-290| 120-0y S50 % 158,19 &= ° #es O
' 18$ $ - OYes [ONo OYes [ONo
$ $ OYes 0ONo | OYes. ONo
$ $ OYes [ONo OYes 0ONo
$. $ OYes ~ ONo OYes ONo
$ $ OYes ONo OYes ONo
Rev. 7/31/17 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. | 2

000030



* You have 90 days from the date of notnce of increase or from the first date you recewed written notice of the

existence of the Rent Adjustment program (whichever is later) to contest a rent increase. (O.M.C.8.22.090'A2) If

you did not receive a RAP Notice with the rent increase you are contestmg but have received it in the past, you
have 120 days tofilea petltlon (O.M.C. 8.22.090 A- 3) v

Have yga ever filed a pet1t1on for this rental unit?
Yes
] No _

List case number(s) of all Petition(s) you have ever filed for th1s rental unit arid all other relevant Petltlons

T15-029€ 316 --O'3>‘7LL
IIL. DESCRIPTION OF DECREASED OR INADEQUATE HOUS]NG SERVICES

Decreased or inadequate housing services are considered an increase in rent, If you claim an ualawful
rent increase for problems in your unit, or because the owner has taken away a housmg serv1ce, you must
complete this section. - :

Are you being charged for services originally paid by the owner? - OYes N6
Have you lost services originally provided by the owner or have the conditions changed? es [ONo
" Are you claiming any serious problem(s) with the condition of your rental unit? MNPES. ONo

If you answered “Yes” to any of the above, or if you checked box (h) or (i) on page 2, please attach a
separate sheet listing a description of the reduced serv1ce(s) and problem(s) Be sure to lnclude the
following: .

1) alist of the lost housing serv1ce(s) or problem(s); - :

. 2) the date the loss(es) or problem(s) began or the date you began paying for the servxce(s)

'3) when you notified the owner of the problem(s), and - _

4) how you calculate the dollar value of lost serv1ce(s) or problem(s)
Please attach documentary evidence if avallable .

You have the option to have a Clty mspector come to your unit and mspect for any code violation. To make an
' appomtment call the City of Oakland, Code of Compliance Unit at (5 10) 238-3381

IV. VERIFICATION: The tenant must sign: -

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything Isaid
in this petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the petition are true coples ofthe

- orlglnals
g} - Q ’m

Te fant’s Slgnature . ' ' Date
i
Rev. 73117 For more information phone (510) 238-3721. v '3

000031



V. MEDIATION AVAILABLE: Mediation is an entlrely voluht'ary process toassist you in reaching an

agreement with the owner. . If both parties agree, you have the option to mediate your complaints before a
hearing is held. If the part1es do not reach an agreement in mediation, your case will goto a formal hearlng
before a dlfferent Rent Adjustment Program Hearmg Ofﬁcer

| You may choose to have the mediation conducted by a Rent AdJustment Program Hearmg Officer or select an
outside mediator. Rent Adjustment Program Hearing Officers conduct mediation sessions free of charge. If
you and the owner agree to an outside mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees
charged by an outside mediator for mediation of rent disputes w111 be the respons1b1hty of the parties
requestmg the use of their services.

Medratlon will be scheduled only if both parties agree (after both your petition and the owner’s response have
been filed with the Rent Adjustment Program). The Rent Adjustment Program will not schedule a

medlatlon session if the owner does not file a response to the etltlon Rent Board Regulatron 8.22.100.A.

If you want to schedule vour case for medlatlon, sign below. -
I agree to ha my case medrated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff Hearing Ofﬁcer (no charge)

| gm;gzcw

Date

VI IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File .
This form must be received at the offices of the Rent AdJustment Program (“RAP”) W1th1n the time limit for

filing a petition set out in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22). RAP staff
cannot grant an extension of time by phone to file your petition. Ways to Submit. Mail to; Oakland Rent’
Adjustment Program, P.O. Box 70243, Oakland, CA 94612; In person: Date stamp and deposit in Rent
Adjustment Drop-Box, Housing Assistance Center, Dalziel Building, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6% Floor,
Oakland; RAP Online Petitioning System: http://rapwp.oaklandnet. com/petltlon-forms/ For more
mfonnatron please call: (510) 23 8-3721

- File Rev1ew , ' '
Your property owner(s) will be requlred to file a response to this petrtlon with the Rent Adjustment office

within 35 days of notification by the Rent Adjustment Program. When it is received, the RAP office will send ‘

you a copy of the Property Owner’s Response form. Any attachments. or supporting documentation from the
owner will be available for review in the RAP office by appointment. To schedule a file review, please call the

Rent Adjustment Program office at (510) 238-3721. If you filed your petition at the RAP Online Petitioning

System, the owner may use the onllne systemn to submit the owner response and attachments, whlch would be
acce531ble there for your review. ' »

VII. HOW DID YOU LEARN ABOUT THE RENT ADJU STMENT PROGRAM?

//jrmted form prowded by the owner

Pamphlet distributed by the Rent Adjustment Program
Legal services or community orgamzatlon

Sign on bus or bus shelter

Rent Adjustment Program web site

Other (describe):

——

Rev. 7/31/17 ' For more information phone (510) 238-3721. ' ’ 4

000032




/\,

CITY OF OAKLAND 019 FEB - PH L
250 FRANK H, OGAWA PLAZA « SUITE 2340 = OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2031 .
Planning and Building Department (510) 238-6402
Bureau of Building : FAX:(510)238-2959
Building Permits, Inspections and Code Enf01 cement Services TDD:(510) 238-3254

inspectioncounter@oaklandnet.com

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

June 4,2018
Certified and Regular mail
To: ALICE B BUILDING LP Code Enforcement Case No.: 1604229
1717 POWELL ST 300 Property: 1470 ALICE ST, OAKLAND 94612
SAN FRANCISCO CA 94133-2843 Parcel Number: 008 062702700

Re-inspection Date/Correction Due Date: 7/11/18

Code Enforcement Services inspected your property onna and confirmed:

[XI that the violations of the Oakland Municipal Code (OMC) identified below are present and need to be addressed as spemﬁed
under “Required Actions”, Photographs of the violations are enclosed where applicable.

[] that work was performed without permit or beyond the scope of the issued permit and you are receiving this Notice of Violation
because you did not get the required permit within three (3) days of receiving the Stop Work Order. You must contact the
inspector indicated below before the Re-inspection Date to stop further code enforcement action,

(] Investor Owned Program - Per OMC 8,58

[C] Foreclosed and Defaulted Properties - Per OMC 8.54

At this point, no fees or other charges have been assessed for these violations. To stop further code enforcement action, you are
advised to correct the above violations and contact Inspector Wing Loo, who is assigned to your case, before the re-inspection date
shown above to schedule an inspection, Your inspector is available by phone at 510-238-6219 and by email at
wloo@oaklandnet.com,

If the Property Owner Certification is included in this notice you may also complete the form and include photographs of the
corrected violations.

Note: If a complaint is filed regarding the same or similar violation(s) and it is confirmed within 24 months from the date of this
notice an Immediate assessment of $1,176.00 will be charged as a Repeat Violation. In addition, if violatlon(s) remain uncorrected
after you receive a 30-day Notice of Violation, further enforcement action(s) will include additional fees.

¢ Ifyoudo not contact your inspector to discuss why you cannot comply or if applicable, complete the Property Owrier
Certification form and the re-inspection verifies that all violations have not been corrected, you may be charged for inspection
and administrative costs, which can total $2,665.00,

* The City may also abate the violations and charge you for the contracting and administrative costs, which can also total over
$1,000.00.

e Priority Lien fees in the amount of $1,349.00 may be assessed if fees are not paid within 30 days from the date of the invoice.
Charges may be collected by recording liens on your property and adding the charges to your property taxes or by filing in
Small Claims Court, I

*  The Notice of Violation may be recorded on your property with associatadF-—7T

tnd recording.

§
May 2018 ‘ ‘§
Scan to: Code Enforcement-Chronology-Abatement Activities ) Xr\

z 000033

tice of Violation

—— e p




" Yoirhave a right to appeal this Not(\ of Violation. You must complete the enclose( peal form and return it with supporting
- documentation in the enclosed envelope, If Code Enforcement Services does not receive your written Appeal within the appeal
deadline dated: 7/11/18 you will waive your right for administrative review. Note.  Incomplete appeals including, but not limited to an
oral notification of your intention to appeal, a written appeal postmarked but nol received by us within the time prescribed or a
written appeal received by us without a filing fee are not acceptable and will be rejected.

Note: The appeal period may be reduced based on prior noticing i.e., Courtesy notice, Repeat Violation and the Property Owner
Certification on record.

1f you choose to file an appeal no further action can be taken by Code Enforcement Inspectors until you have had the opportunity to be

heard by an independent Administrative Hearing Examiner pursuant to the Oakland Municipal Code Section 15.08.380 (B)(3) and a
Final Decision is determined. An appeal will be scheduled within 60 days from the end of the appeal period. A filing fee in the
amount of $110.00 is due at the time of submittal. Payments may be made in person at the Bureau of Building, 250 Frank Ogawa
Plaza, 2" Floor, or by phone by calling 510-238-4774 (Please include the receipt number and date on your appeal). MasterCard
and Visa are accepted,

Investor-Owned Residential Property Foreclosed and Defaulted
OMC 8.58 OMC 8,54

Administrative/Civil penalties will be Assessed for failure to abate (OMC
Sections 8.24.020, 1.08.60, 1.12), Penalties may be assessed for up to 21 days
at $1,000 a day. You will be notified separately if penaities have accrued.

Civil penalties will be Assessed for failure to abate (OMC Sections
8.24.020.1,08.601.12). Penalties may be assessed for up to 21 days at $1,000 a
day. You will be notified separately if penalties have accrued.

Nuisance Abatement Lien (Notice of Violation)
A Nuisance Abatement Lien may be filed with the Alameda County _ (Priovity Lien) (OMC 8.54.430) .
Clerk-Recorder for recordation on the property title which shall have the force, | A Constructive notice of the pendency of a collection action for an
effect and priority of a Judgment Lien. The Nuisance Abatement Lien may be | Assessment to all other interested parties shall be established on the
foreclosed by an action brought by the City of Oakland for a money judgment, | date alien is recorded by the Alameda County Clerk-Recorder

(Priority Lien) (OMC 8.58.430)
A Constructive notice of the pendency of a collection action for an
Assessment to all other interested parties shall be established on the
date a lien is recorded by the Alameda County Clerk-Recorder

Sincgrely,

VA

Wing Loo
Specialty Combination Inspector
Planning and Building Department

Enclosures as applicable:

[] Blight brochure ] Residential Code Enforcement brochure [J Vehicular Food Vending brochure
[ Property Qwner Certification [C] Mold and Moisture brochure [C] Pushcart Food Vending brochure
‘[J Lead Paint brochure ] Undocumented Dwelling Units brochure [ Smoke Alarms brochure

1 Photographs [ Stop Work brochure ] Condominium Conversion brochure
cC!

000034




1 Properfy Address: 1470 ALICE ST, OAKLAND 94612 Complaint #: 1604229

Pr(merty Malntemncey (Bllght) (Checkllst of Violations attached) _ _

ce Housing)

. ‘Reduired'A .| OMC Section .

The apa1 tment building does not have a resident manager Who leSIdes at | Provide a resident manager, | 15.08.230.R
this address,

Zoning
- Description:of Violatio) - Required Action

" \ " 000035




7019 FEB -b PH 1l

To : ALLTENANTS AND OCCUPANTS

IMPORTANT UPDATE CONTACT NUMBER OF RESIDENT MANAGER IS (805)757-2196

1470 Alice Street Oakland Ca 94612
RE: APPOINTMENT OF RESIDENT MANAGER _

We are pleased to inform that effective as of July 12018, Elina Bedoya has joined the management team
of 1470 Alice Street, Oakland ,Ca 94612, as your resident onsite mahager. As stated she will be joining
the team of Joanna and Steve. Please continue to work with Joanna and Steve for all your maintenance
requests and building needs.

|

|
All rents are due on before the first of the month in the lobby box. Cash or partial payments will not be !
accepted. Payment will only be accepted in the form of personal check, guaranteed check made payable :
to : Alice B. Building L.P. . Payment will only be accepted from Tenants whose name is on lease
agreement. Only one check per apartment . We will not accept checks from unauthorized occupants.

The staff for your property is as follows:
Offsite management : Joanna and Steve (415)819-5995 email: 1470alice@gmail.com
Resident manager : Elina Bedoya (805)757-2196

ﬂ.:l'hank you for your cooperation.

Jeanne Robertson, Property supervisor

000036



RENT AERE

NS FeE ==

TENANT MATEN T ==

All maintenance requests have to be submitEedad ec» -——m————maaaa—
called in, it has to be followed up with this for-—a=._

If you are experiencing an outage, please call thhe= E———
You smell natural gas, or suspect another MErBETRCyr ——
1-1 or PG&E at 1-800-743-5000.

Tenant’s Name: Qe -
Address; / "/7/*7 /?::::Lﬁ- '};’

Phone Numbe s: Cell Z?@«—S’ 30 a H-oxsae— _

_'g-- I, (Tl 2ol phres 3 — =

2 Keplace {Yols < —

Please indicate whether you have any pels, or other CONCETTRS e ——— e

unit:

1 understand that in submitting this maintcnance request, ¥ s ﬁ;

my Spartment as necessary to inspect the work requested
agents deem it n A ﬁ
w N ypaM -
Signed: _/ 3 ainsz- ¥ Iz
(Tenght on Lease)
After completing the items above, et B m—— e ——

[}

% — H— X

Recelved by:

Work Completed By

Charge Cost To Tenant: Yes

Reason to Charge:

Action Taken:

Commentis:

000037



[ ‘.

KECEIVED
SITY OF GAKLAND
RENT ARBITRATION PROGK M

CITY OF OAKLAND WEIRCTS amn: 37
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

(\ Oakland, CA 94612-0243
10) 238-3721

CITY OF OAKLAND (510)238-372 PROPERTY OWNER

RESPONSE

Please Fill QOut This Form As Completely As You Can. Failure to provide needed information may
result in your response being rejected or delayed.

CASE NUMBER T19 -0184 ,(iiﬂ?/ VZr7¥

Your Name Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:

Lucky Stewart 1145 Bush St.

Alice B. Building, LP San Francisco, CA 94109 415-1434-9700
Email:

Your Representative’s Name (if any) Complete Address (with zip code) Telephone:

Greg McConnell 300 Frank Ogawa Plaza #460

JR McConnell Oakland, CA 94612 510-834-0400

The McConnell Group Email:

gmc@themcconneligroup.com
jr@themcconnellgroup.com

Tenant(s) Name(s) Complete Address (with zip code)
1470 Alice St. #206
James Beard Oakland, CA 94612
Property Address (If the property has more than one address, list all addresses) Total number of units on
, property
1470 Alice St. Oakland, CA 94612 22

Have you paid for your Oakland Business License? Yes Bd No [ Lic. Number: 00190859
The property owner must have a current Oakland Business License. If it is not current, an Owner Petition or Response may
not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment. -

* proof will be provided prior to hearing
Have you paid the current year’s Rent Program Service Fee ($68 per unit)? Yes B No 0 APN:_8-627-27
The property owner must be current on payment of the RAP Service Fee. If the fee is not current, an Owner Petition or
Response may not be considered in a Rent Adjustment proceeding. Please provide proof of payment.

* proof will be provided prior to hearing

Date on which you acquired the building: 4 / 15 16.

Is there more than one street address on the parcel? Yes 00 No .

Type of unit (Circle One): House / Condominiu oom, or live-work

For more information phone (510)-238-3721 " o o o
Rev. 7/12/2019

000038




L JUSTIFICATION FOR RENT INCREASE You must check the appropriate justification(s) box for each increase
greater than the Annual CPI adjustment contested in the tenant(s) petition. For the detailed text of these
justifications, see Oakland Municipal Code Chapter 8.22 and the Rent Board Regulations. You can get additional
information and copies of the Ordinance and Regulations from the Rent Program office in person or by phoning (510)

238-3721.

You must prove the contested rent increase is justified. For each justification checked on the following table, you
must attach organized documentary evidence demonstrating your entitlement to the increase. This documentation
may include cancelled checks, receipts, and invoices. Undocumented expenses, except certain maintenance, repair,
legal, accounting and management expenses, will not usually be allowed.
* Tenant is not contesting a rent increase. Tenant claims decreased housing services.

Date of Banking Increased Capital Uninsured

Debt Fair Return
Contested (deferred annual Housing Service Improvements Repair Service
Increase increases ) Costs Costs
O 0 O
(N O 0 O
O O ]

If you are justifying additional contested increases, please attach a separate sheet.

II. RENT HISTORY If you contest the Rent History stated on the Tenant Petition, state the correct information in
this section. If you leave this section blank, the rent history on the tenant’s petition will be considered correct

The tenant moved into the rental unit on

3/15/14

The tenant’s initial rent including all services provided was: $ 1,400.00 /month.

Have you (or a previous Owner) given the City of Oakland’s form entitled “NOTICE TO TE TS OF RESIDENTIAL

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM?” (“RAP Notice”) to all of the petitioning tenants? Yes

know

If yes, on what date was the Notice first given?

No _K

Is the tenant current on the rent? Yes

3/15/14

No Idon’t

Begin with the most recent rent and work backwards. If you need more space please attach another sheet.

Date Notice Date Increase Rent Increased Did you provide the “RAP
Given Effective NOTICE” with the notice of

(mo./day/year) From To rent increase?
10/25/18 12/1/18 $ 147987 $ 1,530.19 MYes ONo
10/25/17 12/1/117 $ 1,450.85 $ 1,47987 ®Yes [INo
11/1/16 12/1/16 $ 140000 |® 145085 XYes ONo

$ $ OYes [No

$ $ OYes 0ONo

Rev. 7/12/2019

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.

000039




1. EXEMPTION

If you claim that your property is exempt from Rent Adjustment (Oakland Municipal Code Chapter
8.22), please check one or more of the grounds:

O The unit is a single family residence or condominium exempted by the Costa Hawkins Rental Housing
Act (California Civil Code 1954.50, et seq.). If claiming exemption under Costa-Hawkins, please answer the
following questions on a separate sheet:

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice to quit (Civil Code Section 1946)?

Did the prior tenant leave after being given a notice of rent increase (Civil Code Section 827)?

Was the prior tenant evicted for cause?-

Are there any outstanding violations of building housing, fire or safety codes in the unit or building?

Is the unit a single family dwelling or condominium that can be sold separately?

Did the petitioning tenant have roommates when he/she moved in?

If the unit is a condominium, did you purchase it? If so: 1) from whom? 2) Did you purchase the entire building?

S N

O The rent for the unit is controlled, regulated or subsidized by a governmental unit, agency or authority
other than the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance.

O The unit was newly constructed and a certificate of occupancy was issued for it on or after January 1,
1983.

(W] On the day the petition was filed, the tenant petitioner was a resident of a motel, hotel, or boarding
house less than 30 days.

O The subject unit is in a building that was rehabilitated at a cost of 50% or more of the average basic cost

of new construction.

O The unit is an accommodation in a hospital, convent, monastery, extended care facility, convalescent
home, non-profit home for aged, or dormitory owned and operated by an educational institution.

a The unit is located in a building with three or fewer units. The owner occupies one of the units
continuously as his or her principal residence and has done so for at least one year.

IV. DECREASED HOUSING SERVICES

If the petition filed by your tenant claims Decreased Housing Services, state your position regarding the tenant’s
claim(s) of decreased housing services. If you need more space attach a separate sheet. Submit any documents,
photographs or other tangible evidence that supports your position.

Owner denies all tenant allegations. These issues are stale; they have been heard and denied
in multiple cases, including T16-0734 and T17-0419.

Please see attachment A. (PAGE 5)

Owner respectfully requests this case be dismissed.

For more information phone (510)-238-3721.
Rev. 7/12/2019

000040




Y. VERIFICATION

I declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that all statements made in this
Response are true ap that all of the documents attached hereto are true copies of the originals.
V4

(A 7/17/19
Property-Owidr’s Signature Date
IMPORTANT INFORMATION:

Time to File

This form must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP), 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, Oakland,
CA 94612-0243, within 35 days after a copy of the tenant petition was mailed to you. Timely mailing as shown by a
postmark does not suffice. The date of mailing is shown on the Proof of Service attached to the response documents
mailed to you. If the RAP office is closed on the last day to file, the time to file is extended to the next day the office is
open.

You can date-stamp and drop your Response in the Rent Adjustment drop box at the Housing Assistance Center.. The
Housing Assistance Center is open Monday through Friday, except holidays, from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.

File Review

You should have received a copy of the petition (and claim of decreased housing services) filed by your tenant. When
the RAP Online Petitioning System is available, you will be able to view the response and attachments by logging in
and accessing your case files. If you would like to review the attachments in person, please call the Rent Adjustment
Program office at (510) 238-3721 to make an appointment.

Mediation Program

Mediation is an entirely voluntary process to assist you in reaching an agreement with your tenant. In mediation, the
parties discuss the situation with someone not involved in the dispute, discuss the relative strengths and weaknesses of
the parties’ case, and consider their needs in the situation. Your tenant may have agreed to mediate his/her complaints
by signing the mediation section in the copy of the petition mailed to you. If the tenant signed for mediation and if you
also agree to mediation, a mediation session will be scheduled before the hearing with a RAP staff member trained in
mediation.

If the tenant did not sign for mediation, you may want to discuss that option with them. You and your tenant may agree
to have your case mediated at any time before the hearing by submitted a written request signed by both of you. If you
and the tenant agree to a non-staff mediator, please call (510) 238-3721 to make arrangements. Any fees charged by a
non-staff mediator are the responsibility of the parties that participate. You may bring a friend, representative or
attorney.to the mediation session. Mediation will be scheduled only if both parties agree and after your response has
been filed with the RAP.

If you want to schedule your case for mediation and the tenant has already agreed to mediation on their petition,
sign below.

I agree to have my case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program Staff member at no charge.

Property Owner’s Signature Date

4 /
f

| 000041




T19-0184; Beard v. Alice B. Building, LP

Attachment A
Landlord Response to tenant claims:

Landlord respectfully demands that this petiﬁon be dismissed. The claims in this petition were heard and
decided uponin T16-0228, T16-0734 and T17-0419. Tenant dismissed T16-0228 and J16-0734 was denied

by RAP Hearing Officer Kasdin. His decision was affirmed by Administrative Appeal dismissal with
prejudice. 21_7;%_19 was denied by RAP Hearing Officer Cohen and affirmed on appeal. These decisions
have been finalized and are unreviewable per the doctrine of res judicata.

For the record:

1. Llandlord disputes storage area claim and will defend issue at hearing. Issues was included in

T16-0734 and denied by RAP via Hearing Officer decision with affirmation by Administrative
appeal dismissal with prejudice. Issues was also included in T17-0419 and denied by RAP via
Hearing Officer decision with affirmation on appeal.

2.

Landlord contests all claims of code violations and service reductions.
3.

Landlord denies each and every allegation in petition and reserves the right to supplement the
response prior to hearing and provide additional testimony at hearing.

P
fd o
e I
e >t
Cm e
. W<
- gt
2 )
w———— 20T y
@ T m
oy
CI s e
b & rf.
L
— 0
o fasi o)
o 5
w =

0000425




L,

\. i '/ .
9/2/2019 Aﬁ | ‘ahoo Mail - Re: Month number 4 on water damage( rage unit Mb\;\~

10 O Bad s MG

On Apr 8, 2019, at 12:39 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

I }

! Good afternoon James,

While stating we are still working on a solution is not the answer you want to hear, but both Joanne
. and | have had several people to visit the space and we are still working on a solution. My suggestion
b is to utilize the smaller storage space in the meantime. What | saw when you opened the storage

; unit was that this would fit in the other empty space.

Jeanne Robertson

Meridian Management Group
. 614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
békland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

B9:€ Hd €-d3S6I

F. (510) 338-3651

Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

Sent: Monday, April 8, 2019 10:00 AM
000043




. ,»«\ e
9/2/2019 A‘/ Yahoo Mail - Re: Month number 4 on water damag( \arage unit

To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

! Subject: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

f We have entered month number 4 and still no results on repairing my tool storage unit or preventing
b future water invasion. What's the current status of hiring a new licensed contractor with credentials
b and warranty? My apartment isn't a storage unit and | don’t have any space in my tiny apartment to
put these tools. :

» Let me know what it's going to take to put this to a satisfactory solution and ending? This is ridiculous.
j Please set a date for a contractor to permanently repair water damaged and prevent future water
intrusion. Standing by for a reply.

JB 206

Sent from my iPhone

000044




i

/ 9122019 AT&Y**whoo Mail - Storage unit 14 has a serious leak and neads to get fixed Tﬁm 1’\7[

T\ Bed s s

Storage unit 14 has a serious leak and needs to get fixed

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  jrobertson@mmgprop.com
| Date:. Friday, January 11, 2019, 12:05 PM PST

I also have a refrigerator making a loud noise. It's time to replace that refrigerator. it's to noisy and it’s disrupting my
sleep

Sent from my iPhone

LO

-
.

2I3SEP -3 PH 3

000045




9/2/2019

S o
K Yahoo Mail - Re: Water leak in storage unit 14 nee( “get fixed.

. currently due to the rain. This is not an uncommon issue. We will look into
~ it to confirm it is not a building leak.

. Thank you for your information.

. Jeanne

Sent: Friday, January 11, 2019 1:15 PM
. To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmaprop.com>
. Subject: Water leak in storage unit 14 needs to get fixed.

Download full resolution_images

Available until Feb 10, 2019

000046



N

/o .
9/2/2019 A Yahoo Mail - Re: Water leak in storage unit 14 neei/ “get fixed.

. Apt. 206

Sent from my iPhone

On Jan 12, 2019, at 2:25 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

. James - | am glad we are starting off on a new set of attitudes. Thank you very much.

¢ Please understand the leaking into the garage as more to do with ground saturation than
+ anything. And even if | caulked this entry point it's going to enter somewhere. s the

. water reaching your storage unit? Can you put it off the ground?

We will address the situation and see what can be done to redirect the water. No
. promises but | will see what can | do to keep 2019 happy for all..

. Jeanne

From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcgiobal.net>

. Sent: Friday, January 11, 2019 3:13 PM

. To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

. Subject: Re: Water leak in storage unit 14 needs to get fixed.

. All my work tools and accessories are stored in these storage units. | don’t care if the

" garage leaks. | just don’t want it to leak in my storage unit and spilling out onto my
parking space. If we can get these 2 things fixed in a reasonable time frame from this

: date, you shouldn’t have to hear from me for quite a while. It's 2019, let's bury the

. hatchet.

: Have a nice weekend
James Beard

~ 289-5301 apt 206

. Sent from my iPhon

. On Jan 11, 2019, at 1:18 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRoberison@mmgprop.com> wrote:

+ James,— -

~ All maintenance request should still be issued to Joanne and Steve. They
- are the responsible party for your building. The ground is saturated

000047



N .
9/2/2019 ( Yahoo Mail - Re: Water leak in storage unit 14 nee( "\ get fixed.

- Any sign of any movement on fixing this leak in my storage unit on space 14? | had to pull all of my tools and ropes,

- and climbing gear out of the storage unit because they were getting wet. My ropes are drying out on the porch as |

- write you this email. This was an issue previously and they promised last time, it would remain fixed. | can look into a
. reputable contractor and mold experts to permanently fix this issue, if you like. This group can give you solid work

- with warranty. | recommend these fellas last time but y'all decided to take on the work yourselves. | want to see

' restilts by the end of this week.

Thanks
James Beard

| 206

PS. My‘refrigerator is still loud and needs to be replaced since it can’t be fixed. Take care of these 2 request items
: and you shouldn’t have to hear from me the rest of this year.

Sent from my iPhone

- On Jan 15, 2019, at 4:55 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

- Joanne is going to make sure 12 doesn't get wet also. She will get back to me later today.

- Sorry for the:delay, strep throat. Which again it would really be helpful if you include Joanne and
. Steve. They are really good about getting things done when it's reasonable. And they aren’t against
© you. Sometimes they just need approval to move forward.

- Jeanne

" From: James Beard <ggorgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

- Sent: Monday, January 14, 2019 10:15 AM

. To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

' Subject: Re: Water leak in storage unit 14 needs to get fixed.

The water is definitely running through my storage unit and onto the floor. If we can figure out a way to
- either seal the active leak or direct the water to a nearby drain, that would be awesome. it's going to
rain hard Wednesday and Thursday. That would be a great day for an inspection to see where the
water is coming from. Another possible solution might be to move me in parking space 12 from 14. |
. don’t see any water coming from storage unit and parking space 12. Just an idea. We'll figure it out.
. Just want to keep my tools dry.

- James Beard

- 510-289-5301 000048

SIA



9/2/2019 47X Yahoo Mail - Re: Water leak in storage unit 14 nee(i"- *q get fixed.

{

Re: Water leak in storage unit 14 needs to get fixed.

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  JRobertson@mmgprop.com

Cc 1470Alice@gmail.com

Date: Friday, February 1, 2019, 10:55 AM PST

Any sign of contractors on the way to fix the water leak in storage unit 14? Give me a date to make sure the storage unit
is cleared for the contractors arrival ASAP. If you want, | can hire someone and take the, labor and materials, cost out of
the rent. If not, hire a contractor that guarantees warranty on their work ASAP.

Give me a call if you have any questions or reply to this email

Thanks

James Beard
510-289-5301

Sent from my iPhone

- OnJan 22, 2019, at 5:31 PM, James Beard <ggorgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net> wrote:

Nobody has looked at the refrigerator since 1 put a maintenance request in the box 2 Thursday’s ago. Thanks for the
- reply

- JB
: Sent from my iPhone

i On Jan 22, 2019, at 11:34 AM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmagprop.com> wrote:

,‘ What | stated was we would look into the issue, but you have to understand there was a fremendous amount of rain
- lately. We can not apply a fix untilitis dry . Please be patient.

' Did anyone look at the refrigerator yet?

- From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Tuesday, January 22, 2019 7:49 AM
. To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmaprop.com>
Cc: 1470Alice@gmail.com
Subject: Re: Water leak in storage unit 14 needs fo get fixed.

" Good morning

000049

1/4



9/2/2019

AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: 1470 Alice Storage(

TI4- o1 "
Re: 1470 Alice Storage EQQ\(‘OJ U9 M W\ ()\

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To: JRobertson@mmgprop.com
Date: Friday, March 15, 2019, 02:13 PM PDT

Hi Jeanne
The locks are falsely locked but I'll totally remove them to eliminate any confusion next Wednesday.
Thanks

Jamie
510-289-5301

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 14, 2019, at 1:04 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

Tt/’\é’w nt

Don't get mad or laugh, but my new favorite contractor did not listen. Joanna has actually been working diligently to get

information on how to stop. She needs the doors unlocked next Wednesday.

Please thank you.  The guy today did not ask for the code, so we did not get in to the cabinets since they are locked.

Can you send a code to open. :
Jeanne

<image001.png>

Jeanne Robertson

Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
, Oakland, CA 94610

' P. (510) 444-9700

' F. (510) 338-3651

Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

8%:€ Hd €- 43546102

000050



o0t 01 013 (> AT&T Yahoo Mail - Tool storage unit #14 sl I - \ eront

Tool storage unit #14 still leaks 6@0\(7) Us M M {T

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  jrobertson@mmgprop.com

Date: Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 02:01 PM PDT

Water is still treading in both units. The maintenance contractor got rid of the mold but still hasn't sealed the leak that’s
coming in my storage unit. It's time fo hire a licensed contractor with certifications and repair warranty guaranteed. Your
hired maintenance contractor can do the mold and painting after the licensed contractor does the final repair and
inspegction. We're not there yet. | pulled my truck forward so you're maintenance contractor can finish the work and for
today s inspection.

Thanks

Jamie 206
510-289-5301

Sent from my iPhone

Ne ~ N ﬁf \L\J;wf\p t 4o
Qz,(m.'r & (/\\zf)Jrof*’-—f 545@,35, '\):{\L} Was <

%\\"/J O&jf\%\(ojr de s (.O‘QL of Sk

Y LDJQ\'\?Q%-Q—"\&/‘Q—} ¢ Faux 1. a/\) ¢
(Wﬁr\"no‘ ls

Ih:€ Hd €~ d3S6102

DN N‘)HV‘H!GHV IH
ENVIHYE 40 AL
NEVNEREN

000051



9/2/2019 _ K,\ ( AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Garage ( T‘Cm V\f‘('
. TM Ol Beavd vs MMk

Re: Garage

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  JRobertson@mmgprop.com

Date: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 12:44 PM PST

1 want to meet the contractor in person and yes, | removed the water from my storage as | do it everyday. If I didn’t, there
would be a waterfall coming out of my storage unit. I left my unit unlocked for inspection yesterday. Anyway, please
schedule to meet me on Tuesday when it's scheduled for rain in the forecast. You can see firsthand, what happens in
active rain takes place or send Joanne and Steve to meet me in the later afternoon like around 4pm-6pm, Tuesday
February 26,2019, In the interim, next time it rains and I'm at home and not off location, I'm going to film active rain.
Bags won't protect tools and ropes from getting wet and it's important for my storage unit to remain fixed for proper tool
storage as these tools are used to pay rent and bills. Any electrician, mechanic, carpenter or blue collar worker will tell
you that proper tool storage is important. Tools and tool boxes don't belong on my living room floor and rigging ropes as
well.

I hope to meet with you or the offsite management team Tuesday late afternoon. See y’all then

Jamie
206

Sent from my iPhone

§

| On Feb 20, 2019, at 12:23 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

¢ James, that last statement is totally wrong. | have been fair to you, and you are right | did not look inside your unit,
' ‘because it was locked when | was there. 1 saw no evidence of water until you sent the video. At which time !

- addressed the situation and also asked you to dry the water that is standing.  Have you done this? | have
E already given instructions to schedule someone to look at the ceiling of your storage.

Joanne and Steve will be in touch with the time the repair guy will be there.

. Jeanne

€€:€ Hd €-d3S6il

: From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>
. Sent: Wednesday, February 20, 2019 9:12 AM

. To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>
. Subject: Re: Garage

. You didn’t even look at my storage unit. You looked at a different storage unit that had no damage. You need to look

~ at mine. By refusing to repair my storage unit permanently, you are illegally decreasing my services and | already
filled a decrease in service petition and I'm challenging the most recent rent increase until 1 get a hearila%da e. That's

~ legal. That's the only remedy | know to get you to do your job. | was given reduced rent because of yo Qﬁ@ﬂce




9/2/2019 ( N AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Garage ( N

N

i
i

. and failure to repair. | sent a video clip to you and I'll send another one when it rains again. These videos will be
documented as evidence and will be used at rent board at the next hearing.

iy you have to do is fix my storage and refrigerator and you refuse. Why is it that you jump through hoops to take

care of your luxury tenants that pay $4000 a month for rent but you don’t answer to any of my maintenance request
and you continually decrease my services as a form of harassment to get me to leave? | paid extra money for that
storage unit and parking space. | expect my parking space not to be a slip hazard and my storage unit not flooded
and damaged with toxic mold.

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 19, 2019, at 11:08 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRaobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

James, The judgement that gave you a four month decrease in rent, was due to overhead pipes leaking. This is
not the case. In fact the integrity of your storage shows to be in the same condition, with no water damage to the
wood. Any rust to your items stored in this area you can help prevent by simply placing a trash bag over them.

Jeanne

From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2019 9:25 PM

To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>
Subject: Re: Garage

T16-0734. You should read the judgement ruling. The storage unit is a space | store my work tools and it's a
necessary service.

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 19, 2019, at 12:29 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

{ was just there, my apologies for not contacting you. There is no water going into the storage, rather a
cement wall. | checked the storage immediately next to you. Concrete absorbs water by nature and that may
allow moisture into your storage by laws of nature. For which you can take additional steps to put your
equipment in bags, etc.  This was in place when you signed the lease and no changes have been made to
cause any difference. | have discussed the paragraphs in your lease that address this. The water on the floor

000053



9/2/2019

.

(' ™~ AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Garage (

of the garage, is going to happen from time to time during a rain and that is a safety feature to allow run off,
because this is an underground garage, it is expected and structurally built to do so.

Please find something else to be angry about, preferably not related to your rental. We will not making any

changes to the storage area regarding your claims presented and demand to do so. Thatis final. Please,
feel free to politely submit any future maintenance request utilizing our Meridian Management Group policy
requirements on a Maintenance request form to Joanne and Steve.

The balance due on your ledger is accurate. For the last year while waiting for the multiple appeals you did not
pay the correct rent. No one approved that you do so, and we kindly waited through all your appeals.

However the decision has been finalized. And it is now time for you to pay back the rent you did not pay in full
last year. If needed | am happy to post the decision which provides the amount that was due.

| know this is not the answer that you want, but please try to put some understanding and consideration and try
protecting your equipment by simply putting it in bags and sealing the moisture out. And quit making it a
personal attack against you, because | assure you, it is not.

Jeanne

<image001.png>

Jeanne Robertson

Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
Qakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

F. (510) 338-3651

Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2019 11:13 AM
To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>
Subject: Re: Garage

I’'m here now and | have both storage lockers on space 14 open for inspection for water leaks and damage. I'l
be in.206. Knock on my door or call me. I'm working the graveyard shift this week from 10pm until 8am so let's
keep this brief.

Thanks
000054



9/2/2019

8

(' N AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Garage ( N

JB
510-289-5301

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 18, 2019, at 7:01 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRgbertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

James, | will be on site at some time tomorrow. | will let you in advance when thatis. And | wiil look at
your issue one more time.

Jeanne

Sent: Monday, February 18, 2019 2:24 PM
To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobhertson@mmgprop.com>
Subject: Re: Garage

If you believe that information is true then | got a wall to sell you that Mexico isn’t paying for. Just call the
contractor while the weather is still dry and quite deflecting the subject BS harassment tactics. You also cost
me income and ran up my medical and legal bills and fees well over $10,000.00. We're even.

Now fix my water damaged storage ASAP. it's not hard and it doesn’t come out of your paycheck or profits.
That's Russel Flynn’s financial headache for not doing his job in the first place.

Give me a time and date the contractors are going to show up and fix my storage unit and my flooded
parking space.

JB

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 15, 2019, at 2:35 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

The ledger was attached to show that you did not pay the full rent due.

Jeanne

<image001.png>
Jeanne Robertson 000055



9/2/2019 ™ AT&T Yahoo Mail - RE: Water damaged storage U 4 m n _ﬁ

RE: Water damaged storage umt #14
From: Jeanne Robertson (JRobertson@mmgprop.com)
To:  georgiacycione@sbcglobal.net

Date: Monday, March 11, 2019, 0147 PM PDT

Q External images are now more secure, and shown by default. Change in Settings

5@
20
l(.aﬁﬁﬁ}éadé@that way please meet me in the garage.
e

ISSEP -3 py

Jeanne Robertson
Meridian Management Group
614 Grahd Avenue, Suite 206
Oakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

F. (510)_338-3651

Jrobertson@mmgyprop.com

* From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

¢ Sent: Friday, March 8, 2019 5:26 AM
. To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

- Subject: Re: Water damaged storage unit #14

- Let's try 2pm, Monday, if that's okay with you.

Thanks

JB
. Sent from my iPhone ,
| 000056



9/2/2019 ( "\ AT&T Yahoo Mail - RE: Water damaged storage y~ 14

{

A%

On Mar 7, 2019, at 5:51 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

- Okay Monday afternoon itis . What time. Glad to hear you are back at work.
i Jeanne

<image001.png>

Jeanne Robertson

Meridian Management Group
. 614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
© Oakland, CA 94610

i P. (510).444-9700

' F. (510).338-3651

| Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

' From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>
. Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2019 5:50 PM

i To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>
! Subject: Re: Water damaged storage unit #14

© Hello,

. Sorry for the reply one day later. I've been working double shifts. I'll be available Monday afternoon. I'm
- working through the weekend and cleaning out the water in the storage unit at night before bedtime.

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 6, 2019, at 10:14 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mimgprop.com> wrote:

- Will you be home tomorrow. And what time if so?

. From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

' Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2019 2:25 PM

. To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com=>

. Subject: Water damaged storage unit #14 000057

Ly 3023



9/2/2019

pR ~ “Yahoo Mail - Re: Month number 4 on water damag(’ ~ “orage unit

T1G-084  beowd US

MNMNE

Re: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)

To:

jrobertson@mmgprop.com

Date: Moniday, April 22, 2019, 05:54 PM PDT

1. Please explain in detail the greater factors that are involved.

2. You're going to get your rent in full 5/01/19.
3. | need to get a receipt for each months rent paid from May 2019 going forward. | need to start collecting receipts.
4. Last but not least, my job is going to require me to trave! and I'll be out of town during rent week a lot. Can | please

send my rent check to your office address or an address of your choice when I'm out of town?

Thanks

JB

Sent from my iPhone

i
i

i

i

|

Qn Fri, Apr 19, 2019 at 3:12 PM James Beard <g

| Sent from my iPhone

! Begin forwarded message:

From: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

Date: April 19, 2019 at 12:40:05 PM PDT
To: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

Subject: RE: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

Tront

ng:E Hd €-d3SE6I0

if you do not pay your full pay rent | will be forced to issue a three day notice. You will pay the full rent due.
Pleasé don't make it harder and we are not ignoring the situation there are greater factors involved.

Jeanne Robertson

Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
Oakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700
F-(510)-338-3651
Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

Sent: Friday, April 19, 2019 12:27 PM
To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

000058




9/2/2019

A(' " \Yahoo Mail - Re: Month number 4 on water damagr’”ﬁ‘orage unit

To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

Subject: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

We have entered month number 4 and still no results on repairing my tool storage unit or preventing
future water invasion. What's the current status of hiring a new licensed contractor with credentials
and warranty? My apartment isn’'t a storage unit and | don’t have any space in my tiny apartment to
put these tools.

Let me know what it's going to take to put this to a satisfactory solution and ending? This is ridiculous.
Please set a date for a contractor to permanently repair water damaged and prevent future water
intrusion. Standing by for a reply.

JB 206

Sent from my iPhone

000059



9/2/2019

l-{” ~ \Yahoo Mail - Re: Monih number 4 on water damag("' “orage unit

Subject: Re: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

The solution that | couldn’t take is a smaller storage unit in which someone else already occupies. | need
you to fix the storage unit that got assigned to me when | first signed the lease. Ignoring the problem doesn’t
make it go away. | need my too! storage in full working capacity as soon as possible. That should have been
fixed by the middle of February and we are almost 3 weeks into April. Until my storage is repaired in full |
refuse to pay the current rent increase until | hear back from the Qakland rent board. You will receive the
amount of $1470.00 every month until my storage is 100% fixed and finished. A decrease in service =
reduced rent.

Have a nice weekend
JB 206

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 19, 2019, at 7:56 AM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

You also have been offered a solution that you do not take . However just yesterday | asked another
remediator to go look next week and see if he can help provide an answer to resolve this issue finally. |
will let you know if we have progress.

Jeanne

Sent: Friday, April 19, 2019 7:13 AM

To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

Subject: Re: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

| see that we are into month number 4 and week 2 and still no results. The tool storage unit still has to get
fully repaired before the next rainfall. | really wish | can put my tools back in the tool storage where they
belong. This has been 4 months that I've been denied repair service for my storage unit and loud noisy
refrigerator. This is an obvious attempt to harass me and run me out of my rental unit and you cannot
legally do that. :

Please for the love of god and all things good, fix my storage unit permanently by hiring a credible
licensed contractor that guarantees warranty with their work to get the job done. it’s not hard and it's your
job.

JB 206

000060

Sent from my iPhone



9/2/2019

( " AT&T Yahoo Mail - Tool storage unit #14 still IT/ b ‘rt‘ b I/'\')L

TM'OK%{ e vy Mg

Tool storage unit #14 still leaks

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  jrobertson@mmgprop.com

Date: Wednesday, March 20, 2019, 02:01 PM PDT

Water is still treading in both units. The maintenance contractor got rid of the mold but still hasn’t sealed the leak that's
coming in my storage unit. It's time to hire a licensed contractor with certifications and repair warranty guaranteed ,Your
hired maintenance contractor can do the mold and painting after the licensed contractor does the final repalrcand z
inspection. We're not there yet. | pulled my truck forward so you're maintenance contractor can finish the wosl@and;an
today’s inspection. ‘

Thanks

Jamie 206
510-289-5301

6€:€ Hd E£-43S

Sent from my iPhone

Mier a fled ablempt by G hered
Worke~ Al \acks tne sk.1) (ompetence,
Celentals & urddlatlon 4 pmplte
0 Sol\y Cepair and cestore. Ane Sforce un, b
W Wonte,~ ﬁx@v\’\ﬁﬁ{% }q\\twuy\dr\

000061



9/2/20%9 AT&T Yahoo Mail - E( “'n the greater factors involved with the delay of pervr’ " “ntly fixing my tool storage unit

Explain the greater factors involved with the delay of permanently fixing my tool storage
unit

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  jrobertson@mmgprop.com

Date: Tuesday, April 23, 2019, 02:54 PM PDT

1. Please explain in detail the greater factors involved as to why my storage unit hasn't been permanently repaired by a
licensed contractor with certifications, credentials and back up warranty.

2. Starting May 2019, | want a written receipt for every rent check from hear on out, no exceptions. I've been asking
Joanne and Steve to write me a receipt and they refuse and that’s illegal and a unfair business practices as you claim
that | owe you money and that’s not true. | don’t owe you any additional money other than your rent check every month
in which I've never missed a payment nor was | ever late.

3. I need a address to mail my future rent checks to as I'm going to be out of town on business in which I'll be not here
on rent week. Can | just mail it straight to you at your business address? This the orily apartment complex in this globe
that doesn't accept rent checks by mail and that has costed me serious income and potential future jobs.

Your prompt reply would be greatly appreciated
Thanks

JB
Sent from my iPhone

€ Hd €-43546102

he

Bead o5 MM &
T 9=y U el




9/2/2019 /17' “Yahoo Mail - Re: Month number 4 on water damag{’"“‘qrage unit

Re: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  jrobertson@mmgprop.com

Date: Monday, April 22, 2019, 05:54 PM PDT

1. Please explain in detail the greater factors that are involved.

2. You're going to get your rent in full 5/01/19.

3. I need to get a receipt for each months rent paid from May 2019 going forward. I need to start collecting receipts.
4. Last but not least, my job is going to require me to travel and I'll be out of town during rent week a lot. Can | please
send my rent check to your office address or an address of your choice when I'm out of town?

Thanks

JB

Sent from my iPhone

On Fri, Apr 19, 2019 at 3:12 PM James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net> wrote:

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

*+  From: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>
i Date: April 19, 2019 at 12:40:05 PM PDT

; To: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

Subject: RE: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

If you do not pay your full pay rent | will be forced to issue a three day notice. You will pay the fuil rent due.
Please don't make it harder and we are not ignoring the situation there are greater factors involved.

Jeanne Robertson
Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
' Oakland, CA 94610
i P.(510) 444-9700
. F.(510) 338-3651
Jrobertson@mmagprop.com

Sent: Friday, April 19, 2019 12:27 PM
To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> 000063




9/2/2019

127" “\Yahoo Mail - Re: Month number 4 on water damagr" ~*orage unit

" Subject: Re: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

The solution that | couldn’t take is a smaller storage unit in which someone else already occupies. | need
you to fix the storage unit that got assigned to me when | first signed the lease. Ignoring the problem doesn’t
make it go away. | need my tool storage in full working capacity as soon as possible. That should have been
fixed by the middle of February and we are almost 3 weeks into April. Until my storage is repaired in full |
refuse to pay the current rent increase until | hear back from the Oakland rent board. You will receive the
amount of $1470.00 every month until my storage is 100% fixed and finished. A decrease in service =
reduced rent.

Have a nice weekend
JB 206

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 19, 2019, at 7:56 AM, Jeanne Robertson < JRoberfson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

You also have been offered a solution that you do not take . However just yesterday | asked another

remediator to go look next week and see if he can help provide an answer fo resolve this issue finally. |

will let you know if we have progress.
H ® . - . o 8 -

Jeanne

From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

Sent: Friday, April 19, 2019 7:13 AM

To: Jeanne Robertson <JRoberfson@mmgprop.com>

Subject: Re: Month number 4 on water damaged storage unit

| see that we are into month number 4 and week 2 and still no results. The tool storage unit still has to get
fully repaired before the next rainfall. | really wish | can put my tools back in the tool storage where they
belong. This has been 4 months that I've been denied repair service for my storage unit and loud noisy
refrigerator. This is an obvious attempt to harass me and run me out of my rental unit and you cannot
legally do that.

Please for the love of god and all things good, fix my storage unit permanently by hiring a credible
licensed contractor that guarantees warranty with their work to get the job done. It's not hard and it's your
job.

JB 206

000064

Sent from my iPhone




9/2/2019

,?7“"\Yahoo Mail - Re: Month number 4 on water damag(”’*‘orage unit

On Apr 8, 2019, at 12:39 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

Good afternoon James,

While stating we are still working on a solution is not the answer you want fo hear, but both Joanne
and | have had several people to visit the space and we are still working on a solution. My suggestion
is to utilize the smaller storage space in the meantime. What | saw when you opened the storage
unit was that this would fit in the other empty space.

Jeanne Robertson

Meridian Management Group

614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206

Oakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

F. (510) 338-3651

Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

Sent: Monday, April 8, 2019 10:00 AM
000065



9/2/2019 AT&T/ o Mail - Re: Today's weather forecast is eating aw(' "y storage unit %
T4 615 Ml

Re: Today's weather forecast is eating away my storage unit

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  JRobertson@mmgprop.com

Date: Wednesday, February 6, 2019, 05:05 AM PST

Okay | stand corrected only on one occasion that you just joined in last summer so you didn't lie but the rest of meridian
group including legal reps lied to me and the rent board. I'm not retracting that statement. I'm protesting the last rent
increase until my storage unit is permanently repaired by a professional contractor that guarantees warrantee with their
work. If | have to hire the contractor myself, then | will deduct all expenses from rent as that is perfectly legal under
California state landlord/tenant laws and ordinances under repair and deduct remedy. If meridian management and
owners fixed the problem last time, we wouldn’t be back here again. That's what happens when the job doesn’t get done

right the first time.

| told you that all you have to do is repair and stop the water leak and damage to my storage unit and replace this foud
obnoxious refrigerator that keeps me up at night. Do that and you shouldn’t have to hear from me in quite a while. Make

this problem go away and I'll go away.
Thanks
Jamie

Sent from my iPhone

> On Feb 4, 2019, at 9:48 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

P>

. > We did no such thing. James, we have looked into this, and as of this time there is no fix for water intruding from
. below. lIt's a typical garage issue. | am working on finding a solution, but | have not been able to do so as of yet.
g

i > Jeanne

P>

i > From: James Beard <georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>

. > Sent: Monday, February 4, 2019 9:55 AM

i > To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>

! > Cc: 1470Alice@gmail.com

© > Subject: Today’s weather forecast is eating away my storage unit
P>

1 > It's also a slip hazard. This has gone on to long. | was told it was permanently repaired at the last rent board
- hearing last August 2018 by Greg McConnal. Y’all lied to me
P>

EE:€ Ud £-43S6In

000066



9/2/2019 ( N AT&T Yahoo Mail - Garage ( ™

Garage

From: Jeanne Robertson (JRobertson@mmgprop.com)
To:  georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net

Cc 141ALI@mmgprop.com

Date: Monday, February 11, 2019, 11:48 AM PST

Q External images are now more secure, and shown by default. Change in Settings

James, | went to look at the issue with your space. And this is what | found.

1. The building is set up for water to distribute there as needed this is a built in structural feature. Unlike the
storage unit.

2. While 12 is smaller, it is in a dryer location and this is the only option | have available.

3. The water as far as | could tell was not entering your storage but running along the back side. Perhaps if you
lined the interior with even something as simple as contact paper it would push back any seeping water.

As far as your refrigerator | have asked Joanne to order you another one. They will be in contact.

Also, we got a letter from PGE stating high energy use in the building. Please be aware if you are charging the lime
scooters this is only to be done in your apartment.

We do appreciate that you have a much better attitude going forward.

Jeanne

Jeanne Robertson

Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
QOakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

F. (510) 338-3651 000067



9/2/2019 ( ™\ AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Water damaged storagi/ N

Re: Water damaged storage unit

From: James Beard (georgiacyclone@sbcglobal.net)
To:  JRobertson@mmgprop.com

Date: Wednesday, February 20, 2019, 10:48 AM PST

It's raining next week Monday through Wednesday. Why don’t we meet Tuesday while it's raining so you can see first
hand what damage happens when it rains. That's the only way to do a fair inspection. I'm taking Monday and Tuesday
off-and will be available by appointment. | have a doctors appointment Monday from 1-3pm, physical therapy included.
Tuesday is more flexible. Let's do this right and fair and fix this problem permanently. If this problem goes away, You
won't hear from me for the remainder of this year. With the exception of getting my monthly rent check, you won't even
know I'm hear or I'll be so quiet that you'll forget I'm even here. When | make a promise, | stick to it.

See you next week and more than willing to work with you to put this ongoing problem to rest. All | really want is my
storage unit repaired. | don’t want to make another battle out of this and | don’t think you do either.

Thanks
James Beard 206
510-289-5301

Sent from my iPhone

i

On Feb 19, 2019, at 11:15 PM, Jeanne Robertson <JRoberison@mmgprop.com> wrote:

After watching the video, 1 will return on Friday. 1 am out of town the next two days. In the mean time, you can dry
the water that is there now.

Jeanne

Sent: Tuesday, February 19, 2019 7:54 PM
To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>
Subject: Water damaged storage unit

Download Attachment

Available until Mar 21, 2019

000068



91212619 (" ATST Yahoo Mail- Re: Garage ("

5 Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
Oakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

F. (510)_338-3651

Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

From: James Beard <geargiacyclone@sbcglobal.net>
Sent: Friday, February 15, 2019 2:02 PM

To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>
Subject: Re: Garage

| paid my rent on the first of every month thank you very much. See you at the rent board.
JB
Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 15, 2019, at 11:16 AM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote:

James,

For your convenience i have attached a copy of your lease. Please see page 4 - #16 of your lease.
Specifically where the “tenant release the owner of from any liability or damage to Tenant's property
while stored on the Premises.” Also please see item 21: “Tenant shall NOT remodel, renovate, -
redecorate, paint, refinish, floors, or otherwise alter the Premises, common areas or any other parts of
the Building or the Property in any way.”

We have offered you storage in parking space 12, and that is all we are able o do to accommodate.

The has been no harassment. However, 1 do thank you for reminding me that you are past due on your
rent. Please see the ledger attached and pay the balance due immediately.

Jeanne

<image(001.png>
Jeanne Robertson 000069



9/2/2019

(' N AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Garage ( RN

Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
Oakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

F. (510) 338-3651

Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

Sent: Wednesday, February 13, 2019 1:14 PM
To: Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com>
Subject: Re: Garage

Hate to be the barrier of bad news but your going to have to hire a contractor fo fix that. If | have to go
out of pocket to hire the right contractor then all labor, maintenance and materials will be deducted from
rent as that is legal under California’s repair remedy landlord/tenant laws and it's also a Oakland city
ordinance. Storage space 12 is 50% smaller than mine and | barely have enough room for the storage
space | currently have. Unless you beat me, I'm going to start interviewing contractors to do a full repair
and Il let you pick the contractor with the best deal including warranty. Since | have to remove items in
my storage to keep the dry and safe, I'm going to challenge rent increase at the rent board while we
remedy this since that's the only way 1 can get y'all to act on a emergency. Water damage is dangerous
slip hazard. Forcing me into a smaller space is a decrease in service because the other space is to
small.

If y’all would have hired the guy | recommend last time instead of the dude y'all met at Home Depot, we
wouldn’t be in this situation. 'm fighting this one again. | won last time, | protested this.

| believe y'all are being unreasonable and that harassment tactic is not going to make me leave but it
will run you more legal expenses which could have been totally avoided. The only way 'm leaving is in
a body bag and if you are so lucky to witness that, my son will take over my lease as he was living here
from 2014-2016, which gives him tenants rights.

Get the contractors over here ASAP or | will

James

206

Sent from my iPhone

On Feb 11, 2019, at 11:47 AM, Jeanne Robertson <JRobertson@mmgprop.com> wrote: 000070




9/2/2019 ( Y AT&T Yahoo Mail - Re: Garage (" AN

-

' James, | went to look at the issue with your space. And this is what | found.

1. The building is set up for water to distribute there as needed this is a built in structural
feature. Unlike the storage unit.

2. While 12 is smaller, it is in a dryer location and this is the only option | have available.

3. The water as far as | could tell was not entering your storage but running along the back
side. Perhaps if you lined the interior with even something as simple as contact paper it
would push back any seeping water.

As far as your refrigerator | have asked Joanne to order you another one. They will be in contact.

Also, we got a letter from PGE stating high energy use in the building. Please be aware if you are
charging the lime scooters this is only to be done in your apartment.

We do appreciate that you have a much better attitude going forward.
Jeanne

<image001.png>

Jeanne Robertson

Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
Oakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

F. (510)_338-3651

Jrobertson@mmgprop.com

<Ledger2.13.19.pdf>

<lease.pdf>

000071



~E Cr l\i
Fl I 2.8 % aad ':",f ] ,:»f: ‘rY r)r
= st g 3 " ] le(BfH AT” H 130 “"
THE MCCONNELL GROUP JI9SEP 10 PH 1 b
Consultants and Advocates

Memorandum
To: Maimoona Ahmed, Heari
From: Gregory McConne
Date: 9/10/19 9%
Subject: T19-O§/f4; Additional Documentation

Owner has requested that this case be dismissed, however, Owner retains the right to defend this
petition.

Owner is on vacation and cannot participate in the preparation for this case. We are submitting the
attached documentation currently available on Owner’s behalf. Owner reserves the right to submit
further documentation up to seven (7) days prior to the hearing. If we still have not received the
necessary documents, Owner will request a continuance.

Thank You.

300 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 460, Oakiand, CA 94612 « p: 510.834.0400 « c:510.691.7365 « jr@themcconnellgroup.com

000072




\f’(
SUY UF g 7 4,
QENT AwBHnAm PR

THE MCCONNELL GROUP ISSEP 10 PH 1: 45

Consultants and Advocates

Memorandum

To: Maimoona Ahmed, Hearing Officer, Oakland Rent Arbitration Program
Ce: Barbara Kong Brown, Senior Hearing Officer, Oakland Rent Arbitration Program

James Beard, Tenant

Nancy Conway, Esq., Tenart

From: Gregory McConnell

Date: 9/10/19 /
Subject: Renewed Request for Dlsmlssal T19-0814 g/ard v. Stewart

Owner respectfully repeats his demands that this petition be dismissed. The claims in this petition
were heard and decided upon in T16-0228, T16-0734, T17-0419 and T18-0134.

This tenant is a serial filer who is abusing the system.

Tenant is not current on rent. Tenant has not been paying rent as stipulated in previous decisions,
and therefore does not have standing to be heard before the RAP. Based upon T16-0734 and
subsequent CPI increases Tenant should be paying $1,479.87 per month prior to the currently
contested increase.

The rent increase in question is a CPI increase based on a RAP decided/approved base rent. The
legitimacy of this rent can be decided administratively without the need for a lengthy hearing.

‘Tenant’s claims of decreased housing services regarding the garage storage unit has been heard
and decided repeatedly in the cases mentioned above.

For these reasons, Owner respectfully demands this petition be dismissed by Administrative
Decision.

Thank You.

300 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 460, Oakland, CA 94612 o p: 510.834.0400 « c:510.691.7365 « jr@themcconnellgroup.com

000073




“
BN

SR

THE MCCONNELL GRbUP 9% 1 Pl ,,.,,4

Consultants and Advocates
Memorandum
To: Maimoona Ahmed, Hearing Officer, Oakland Rent Arbitration Program
Ce: Barbara Kong Brown, Senior Hearing Officer, Oakland Rent Arbitration Program

James Beard, Tenant

Nancy Conway, Esq., Tenarit

From: Gregory McConnell

Date: 9/10/19 _ @/ X‘%

Subject: Renewed Request for Dismissal: T19-0814; Beard v. Stewart

Owner respectfully repeats his demands that this petition be dismissed. The claims in this petition
were heard and decided upon in T16-0228, T16-0734, T17-0419 and T18-0134.

This tenant is a serial filer who is abusing the system.

Tenant is not current on rent. Tenant has not been paying rent as stipulated in previous decisions,
and therefore does not have standing to be heard before the RAP. Based upon T16-0734 and
subsequent CPI increases Tenant should be paying $1,479.87 per month prior to the currently
contested increase.

The rent increase in question is a CPI increase based on a RAP decided/approved base rent. The
legitimacy of this rent can be decided administratively without the need for a lengthy hearing.

Tenant’s claims of decreased housing services regarding the garage storage unit has been heard
and decided repeatedly in the cases mentioned above.

For these reasons, Owner respectfully demands this petition be dismissed by Administrative
Decision.

Thank You.

300 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 460, Oakland, CA 94612 « p: 510.834.0400 « c:510.691.7365 » jr@themcconneligroup.com

000074




(o /

AR \‘

Meridian Management Group

December 10, 2018 m&(ﬂ(&[

BILI

James Beard
1470 Alice Street #206
Oakland, CA 94612

Dear Mr. Beard,
This letter is in response to your email dated December 7, 2018, which stated:

I’'m requesting a written summary explaining why the rent increase received on
November 2 exceeds Oaklands cpi. Your cooperation in this matter would be greatly
appreciated.

Your rent increased $50.32, which is 3.4% of your then current rent amount of $1479.87. This
is not in excess of the current allowable amount per the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment
Program. Your current lawful rent is $1530.19. There is a one time charge of $34.00 dollar
added December 1, 2018 which is the allowable passthru of the rent board fee.

Thank you,

Jeanhe Robertson

Meridian Management Group
614 Grand Avenue, Suite 206
Oakland, CA 94610

P. (510) 444-9700

F. {510) 338-3651
Jrobertson@mmegprop.com

000075




(’ . Alice b. Bullang , L o
1470 Alice Street (

Nov 3.“;20\% -~ Oakland, CA 94612 r™
Decombert0; 2078 - -
NOTICE OF CHANGE IN TERMS OF TENANCY

James Beard
1470 Alice Street , #2086
Oakland, CA 94612

Re: Rentincrease - Oakland Municipal Code, Chapter 8.22
Dear James Beard

While no one likes a rental increase, the cost of operating a building has risen in excess of the increase allowed
by the City Ordinance. We value you as a tenant and hope you will understand the necessity for this increase.

Therefore, you are hereby notified, in accordance with Civil Code Section 827, that thirty (30) days after service upon
your of this notice, or December 1, 2018, whichever is later. Your current monthly payment calculations are to
be found on page two.

Please make your check payable to Alice B. Building, LP,
per the following schedule to be submitted to the Resident Manager:
1) December 1-31, 2018 $1,564.19

2) January 1, 2019 - November 30, 2019 $1,530.19

All rents are due and payable in advance on the 1st day of each and every month. Additionally, a late charge as
outlined in your lease will be charged for any delinquent payment of rent.

Furthermore, please find duplicate notices for the City of Oakland's Rent Adjustment Program. Please enclose the
loose copy with your signature along with your next rent payment. The signed notice is recommended by the
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program. .

Owner reserves the right to bank any and all allowable rent increases under provnsmns of the RRAO and can be
added to any future increases and transferred to any future Owners. :

Owner may apply any payment by Tenant to any obligation of Tenant to Owner, notwithstanding any dates or other
direction from Tenant that accompanies any such payment. Any attempt by Tenant to allocate a payment in any
other way shall be null and void.

Please be advised that pursuant to Oakland Rent Adjustment Program Rules and Regulations, the Owner considers
you to be the only authorized Original Occupant to occupy the above premises.

Information and advice regarding this notice are available from the Oakland Rent Adjustment Program located at
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, 6th Floor, Qakland, CA, 94612.

Sincerely,

Jeanne Robertson
Property Supervisor

Enclosures - Two RAP Notices (One on the back of this notice and one loose copy for return signature)
and Decision Summary _

cc: Resident Manager
Accounting Department
Tenant File

141 #206 See Reverse Side for Calculations

000076




1470 Alice Street , #206( ("
December 10, 2018 -~ LN

Rent Increase Calculations
Effective December 1, 2018

Your current base rent on your apartment is
CPI Rent Increase shall be

Therefore, effective December 1, 2018, the new base rent on your apartment will be

Therefore, effective December 1, 2018, the new monthly base rent on your apartment will be
Additionally, your portion of the Rent Adjustment Program Service Fee is Due in December .
Payment for the month of December 1, 2018

Note: Refer to Page 1 for the schedule of subsequent payments due.

141 #206

$1,479.87
50.32

$1,530.19

$1,530.19
34,00

L ]

$1,564.19

000077




(¢ - ]
CITY OF OAKLAND (\

DALZIEL BUILDING » 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 « OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA
Housing and Community Development ' TEL (510) 238-3721

Department Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510)238-6181
' CA Relay Service 711

ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION

CASE NUMBER: T19-0184 Beard v. Meridian
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1470 Alice Street, Unit 206, Oakland, CA
PARTIES: James Beard, Tenant

Lucky Stewart, Owner

Greg McConnell, Attorney for Owner

INTRODUCTION

The tenant filed a petition on February 4, 2019, contesting a single rent increase
from $1,479.87 to $1,530.19, effective December 1, 2019, and alleging decreased
housing services due to a water leak in the garage storage unit/parking space, and a
loud refrigerator. The tenant also stated that he first received the RAP Notice'in 2014,
and he also received the RAP Notice with the contested rent increase.

The owner filed a timely response, alleging that the proposed rent increase does
not exceed the allowable CPl amount and that the decreased housing service claims
were already decided in prior hearing decisions.

REASON FOR ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION

An Administrative Decision is a decision issued without a hearing. The purpose of
a hearing is to allow resolution of disputes of material fact. However, in this case,
sufficient uncontested facts have been presented to issue a decision without a hearing
and there are no material facts in dispute. Therefore, an Administrative Decision is
being issued.

CPI Rent Increase is Valid

Pursuant to the Rent Adjustment Ordinance, CPI and Banking Rent Adjustments
are not subject to petition.! A tenant may not petition to contest a rent increase justified
in an amount up to and including the CPI Rent Adjustment.?

'O.M.C. §8.22.070(B)
20.M.C. §8.22.070(B)(2)

000078




Y

The Tenant Petition lists a single rent increase, served on November 2, 2018,
proposing to increase the tenant’s rent from $1,479.87 to $1,530.19, effective
December 1, 2018. The allowable CPI for the year of July 1, 2018, to June 30, 2019, is
3.4%, which is $50.32 of $1,479.87, the tenant's rent prior to the proposed rent
increase. The new rent with the CPI Adjustment totals $1,530.19. The CPI was
properly calculated and the proposed increase does not exceed the allowable CPI of
3.4%. Therefore, the CPI rent increase is valid.

Decreased Housing Service Claims

Leak in Garage Storage Unit/Parking Space: Official Notice is taken of the
Hearing Decision in Case Number T16-0734, Beard v. Stewart, a prior case which
involved the same parties and the same subject property. In that case, the tenant
complained about a leak in the garage storage unit/parking space and was granted
restitution. As this claim was already raised and addressed in the prior case, it is
dismissed. ‘

Loud Refrigerator: The tenant stated in his petition, under penalty of perjury, that
“his refrigerator makes a loud noise”. The tenant did not claim any other issues with the
functionality of his refrigerator. A loud refrigerator does not constitute a decrease in
housing services. This is a frivolous claim and is denied.

ORDER
1. Tenant Petition T19-0184 is dismissed.

2. Effective December 1, 2018, the tenant’s new base rent is $1,530.19
monthly.

3. The decreased housing service claims are denied.

4. The hearing scheduled for September 23, 2019, is cancelled.

Right to Appeal: This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment
Program. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly completed appeal
using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The appeal must be received
within twenty (20) days after service of the decision. The date of service is shown on the
attached Proof of Service. If the Rent Adjustment Office is closed on the last day to file,
the appeal may be filed on the next business day.

Dated: September 17, 2019 Maimoéna S. Ahmad
' Hearing Officer
Rent Adjustment Program

2
000079




PROOF OF SERVICE
Case Number T19-0184

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County,
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland,
California 94612.

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to:

Documents Included
Administrative Decision

Owner

Russel Flynn,

Meridian Management Group
1145 Bush Street

San Francisco, CA 94109

Owner Representative

Greg McConnell,

The McConnell

300 Frank Ogawa Plaza, #460
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant

James Beard

1470 Alice Street Unit 206
Oakland, CA 94612

Tenant Representative
Nancy Conway

345 Franklin Street

San Francisco, CA 94102

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of
business.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true
and correct. Executed on September 19, 2019 in Oakland, CA.

Brittni Lothlen
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program

000080




T

.ié.h mm [TRATH

" CITY OF OAKLAND T R X I
2, RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM |~ =
‘ 250 Frank OgawaPlaza Sulte 5313 .. .
:..»Oakland CA.94612 . ‘ e

' T G10 238-3721 T SR o
ClTYOFOAKLAND _( ) b, ABPRAL | o
Appellant’s Name —= :

O Owner [Tenant &
B

t\\ﬂm\(( P)emrd
Property Address (Inchide Unit Number) - . ,
170 Alice sk -&-& 2@6 U

o Dal\omd i @wwzwﬁw.,-aw_fma é
_,Appella.nfs Ma;lxngAddress (For r.ecelpt of notxc_es:) .2 CaseNumber . - S A | .o
SR o T e L ol‘&‘l

s il Date of Degision a pealed

,w
M w

i

Name of Representatlve (xf any) = ) S Representatwe’s Mallmg Address (For notlces) | \
e w'“ff” P34S Fean LR S ~ﬁgf, o
I\)m\u‘ lon wow ]P0 Feaneisc , ¢ "\"-uazm -

_ Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanatlon must -
. be provided respondmg to each ground for ‘which you are appealmg Each giound for appeal hsted T
- below mcludes directions as to what should be mcluded in. the explanatlon ‘ IR S

1) There are math/clerlcal errors that requlre the Hearmg Decxsxon to be updated (Please clearly
explain the math/cler ical.errors,). . . L

2) Appeallng the decnsmn for one of the grounds below (requlred)

decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22 Rent Board Regulatlons or pnor declsmns K
of ‘the Board. {(In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, regulation or przor Board
a’eczsmn(s) and descrzbe how the descrzptzon is inconsistent, )

b) [ The decxsnon is mconsnstent wnth decisions issued by othel Hearing Officers (In your explanation,
. you must identify the przor inconsistent decision and e\plam how the deczszon is inconsistent.)

9 0O The ‘decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (I youz explanation, ’
J;):szde a derazled Statement of the issue and why the issue should be decided in your favo; )b '

d) he decision vmlates federal state or l()cal law. (In your explanatzon, Jou must provzde a detailed

stjz?(,as fo wlzat law is violated) {
€)  [The decision is not supported by substantlal evidence. (In your explanation, you must explain why
the deczszon is not supported by substantial evidence Jound in the case record.) .

For more infofmat'i'on phbn'e (51_0) 238-3721. | , -
Rev. 6/18/2018 I - ' | 000081




IMPORTANT INFORMATION:
Th1s appea] must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program, 250 F1 ank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313
Oakland Cahforma 94612, not later than 5:00 P.M, on the 20th calendar day after the date the decision

was mailed to you as shown on the proof of service attached to the decision. If the last day to. file is a
weekend or holiday, the tlme to file the document is extended to the next busmess day.

-+ Appeals fi led late w1thout good cause will be dlsmlssed
*- You must provide all the information required, or your appeal cannot be processed and

may be dismissed.
**  Any response to the appeal by the other party must be received by the Rent Ad)ustment Program»

with a proof of service on opposmg party within 35 days of filing the appeal. .
* The Board will not consider new claims. All claims, except jurisdiction i fssues, must have'been

. made in the petition, response, or at the hearing.
* ' The Board will not consider new ev1dence at the appeal hearmg without specxﬁc apprcval

* You must sign and date this form or your appeal will not be processed.
* The entire case record is available to the Board, but sections of audio 1ecordmgs must be pre-

designated to Rent Adjustment Staff

For more information phone (551.0) 238-3721.

Rev. 6/18/2018

000082




Qws‘i\wﬂ spac) epont TGS ORY

| \
_J: Aoy g}--ﬁ?mmj & 50 e ciend FN‘“ ;FQ {;.,7 Yo N
pr 05@%{* m\«} Clonmn doe. I Ara rescd boar/

ot Wy e quﬁom’ to M

G’N:> W\Q (/@ “S (ué?g ngﬁ' = %@”t; Y S, 0{:"10{

fo,quLwa\{wﬁ% iﬁ%‘«‘& Ay f)@f‘;i\ , \\{( m (Q}f}\ﬁ{”&

SN o < proc g e hootr ;ffé-w
Ol?\“, Q#\@! u% ?g ‘*‘ \‘ fﬂ{ﬁ k2 € é,j;"& fﬁf ¢ ‘:‘{”ﬁmf,ﬁ/

IS ;m,gjym} d@}f,g \*{j D (4 §x«:~ i iy ﬂﬁijmfe af"tf

e td;(\j %miﬁ w@Mff b ontns oF M@z/
R U e Dorseery Hhe oWper and I T,
GU‘\@) 3}_&”"@@(} &&a%{j@ww& S?\(}{{g}mw d@ﬂg’t‘ rouf
,. QWM\\\@K *{\w\\(g)‘;e@f”\ \F\ca\‘x s A 5“@) ﬂ@‘*v

;}@\m\ {’}‘ék}fw ww{% O éxm{j Q;f ‘T\\(S

% A baeerdox obs Sendard coradid.0n o
Jue -

?“”“’

“P‘&Q‘;z*é O] u}ﬁff My ke o Cuisgrvs Py s PO
QKQ'\»L e Yo Pyder A O N ecar J Q| f
U %ﬂéj gji“%g;}ﬁ%mm@wf} ALY, e ?@WﬁiLi

ey e cer et <?¢f:{¥ PO G 0 e
W Y N Qaﬁe{’ %us‘}f wﬂs e § thel e e q,m 357;;

m(\ﬁwﬁ’; +- f \f’é W;S ‘“}@“’t“{‘@m a%iwg

B

W

a1

k( A
LM
a2 ’i’wmd ¥ e iw\iﬁ e:"{gwm Jtﬁ“f /
@r\\ } g’ig\_ %{%iﬂg @ i\“*#ﬁ L)\ ("'u,u; {f@u [;«J FM

. I}

ey ormbed BN *me}ci» Ve D X 1~ orfer
“+n N Al oy {}@F\(‘{‘f < ey l‘b!’”h{)ﬁ{l Q}*(fl?f)f (\f fie.

BDUY P0Gy Ny {f;?{‘ gﬁ;“i {.Mida A Dl i{% LLe 4
,Fwn%w 54 K@\ ~ting ,ﬁ 0 -~%@(rw ang m.ﬁagfc C’*

Ef £ } \ &4 f \‘;w‘ ""“} ‘z‘f“} N \Je ¥ k%i@ E\\(\&O&M ()




I é%wﬁzi) AT Y 04 o e 1Oc *‘ﬂ Cd “\J
e PR %f".ﬂ}w{.yeg. Qé‘i"{{ {’@;5./’\2 S(\(3 QSA f‘j “er V;LQ
- ;;7' Vi fen v T *»4«,::»;; ,;:;HJJ%W
«ﬁ’@é‘ &sz Tf’mm@ ~~~~~~~ ot ection
Qg)‘%,; ?@xhé’ *@ g Rend adl. *Ez”‘mf\g K“*‘{j@ziwj Gy
Oakiong RBT. Evidenc: & chesris thows Hal
e 4“}“&%5 % (\‘Q‘?&%ﬂ% %’} Cuy H»Q N%zf‘f‘zl@uﬁ
M&x\ o Rﬁw%\mg;@f«« A COvder Ora.. and 5
A,%’w\« H"» Yoy e ;H.,%’:W R Yo gmc}ﬂ @,j\ - 5
)or\é} (‘4 Pl M"u;e {0k lﬂ“’"ﬁ&ﬂ‘ ;} Coyesey Jfade S '%
 deciranye. P %N(j\za?m Serpcr A k,;a AR
{3‘17‘%\% -k i}wrﬂw» Yohasloay ﬁ fwgg é““)% whw A Ta
UR\@x\f\S u\ QUL Can s ”’} Z} N % M* =3 iiw\j
W stee e, W‘*JM@ fOde 10 Oﬁ‘ k. (&Adf

000084



CITY OF OAKLAND

DALZIEL BUILDING « 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 + OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721
Rent Adjustment Program ‘ FAX (510)238-6181
CA Relay Service 711

Housing, Residential Rent and Relocation Board (HRRRB)

APPEAL DECISION
CASE NUMBER: T19-0184, Beard v. Meridian Management
APPEAL HEARING: January 23, 2020

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1470 Alice Street, No. 206, Oakland, CA

APPEARANCES: Nancy Conway  Tenant Representative
Greg McConnell Owner Representative

Procedural Background

The tenant filed a petition contesting a monthly rent increase from $1,479.87 to
$1,530.19, effective December 1, 2018, and claiming several decreased housing
services, including the following:

e Leak in garage storage space/parking space.
e Loud refrigerator.

The owner representative filed a Response, stating the following:

The tenant filed three cases. He dismissed T16-0228, and the issues were decided in two
prior cases. T16-0734 was denied and affirmed by Administrative Appeal Decision. T17-
0419 was denied and affirmed on appeal. These decisions are final and unreviewable per
the doctrine of res judicata.

The hearing officer issued an Administrative Decision dismissing the tenant’s

claims, stating that the rent increase was justified based on Banking, and denying the
~ decreased housing service claims on the grounds that (1) the claim regarding the garage

storage unit/parking space was raised and decided in Case No. T16-0374, entitled Beard

v. Stewart, and (2) the “loud” refrigerator did not affect its functionality and was a frivolous

claim. The tenant appealed this claim to the Board, which heard the appeal on December

6, 2018, affirming the hearing decision based on substantial evidence.’

! The appeal was initially heard on April 18, 2018, on a procedural issue regarding timeliness of filing of the appeal.
The Board determined there was good cause and allowed the appeal to go forward. -

000085



Grounds for Appeal

The tenant appealed the Hearing Decision on the following grounds.
e The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other hearing officers.

The decision violates federal, state, or local law.
The decision is not supported by substantial evidence.
The tenant was denied a sufficient opportunity to present his claim.

Specifically, the tenant contended the Rent Board did not allow him to respond to

Mr. McConnell’'s ‘false claims and evidence tampering’; that Mr. McConnell showed up
before the hearing and got his case administratively dismissed despite overwhelming
evidence, including photographs, 6 months of email exchange between him and the
owner showing dangerous water intrusion that still has not been addressed or fixed,
which constitutes a hazardous condition.

The tenant further contends a retaliatory eviction and tenant harassment based on the
Tenant Protection Ordinance, since he filed the petition. He also claims evidence was
erased in a prior case, in T16-0228, to hide evidence and testimony exposing criminal
activity.

The tenant representative contended that the loud refrigerator noise and an ongoing
leak which was replaced after the petition was filed, constitutes a decreased
Service.

The owner did not file a response to the tenant appeal.

Appeal Decision

After presentation of party arguments, questions to the parties, and Board discussion, J.
Warner moved to remand the case to the hearing officer to hold a full hearing on the
issues raised in the tenant petition. R. Auguste seconded. K. Friedman proposed a
friendly amendment to determine if the leak was a new leak or an ongoing leak, which
was accepted by J. Warner and seconded by R. Auguste.

R. Auguste proposed a friendly amendment to consider the claim of the refrigerator
disturbing the quiet enjoyment of the unit as an issue of fact, which was accepted by J.
Warner.

K. Friedman presented a substitute motion to remand to the hearing officer to determine
if the issue is a new leak or if this was an old leak considered in the prior case. T.
Williams seconded.

The Board voted on the sub motion as follows:

Aye: A. Graham, J. Ma Powers, T. Williams, K. Friedman, J. Warner

2 000086




Nay: T. Hall, R. Auguste
Abstain: 0

Thé motion carried.

J. Warner moved to request that the hearing officer consider the factual basis on the
refrigerator issue as a decreased housing service. A Graham seconded.

The Board voted as follows:
Aye: R. Auguste, J. Ma Powers, A. Graham, J. Warner
Nay: T. Hall, T. Williams, K. Friedman

The motion carried.

/o I Y

CHANEEFRANKLIN MINOR DATE
- BOARD-DESIGNEE

CITY OF OAKLAND

HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND

RELOCATION BOARD

3 000087



2/17/2021

Receipt

Guest & Home ' Report a Problem
Find Account < Registration 9 Calculation < Payment <» Receipt Account # 00190859
ALICE B BUILDING LP

Business License Online Renewal & Secare

PRINT THIS PAGE FOR YOUR RECORD

The business tax license renewal has been submitted. Business tax certificates will be emailed 2 to 5 days after sucessfully renewing account.
For questions, please contact the Business Tax office at (510) 238-3704 or btwebsupport@oaklandca.gov. Thank you, City of Oakland -

Business Tax

Submission Date
Confirmation #

Account Information
Account #

Expire Date

Name

Address

City

Phone

Summary

Tax Calculation

2/17/2021
234304

00190859

12/31/2021

ALICE B BUILDING LP
1470 ALICE ST
OAKLAND

(415) 989-1717 x121

Input Amount

Enter 2020 Gross Receipts *(Enter estimated 2021 Gross Receipts if business started in Oakland in 2020)* 467,471.3 $6,521.22

BT SB1186 (ABI379) 1 $4.00
BT Recordation and Tech » ‘1 $3.00
Rent Adjustment Program (RAP) Calculation - only use whole numbers below

a, Total # of units per Alameda County Records: 22 $2,222.00
Total Due ' $8,750.22
Payment Information

Payment Amount $8,750.22

After printing or saving this page for your records, you may close this browser window/tab.

httos://Itss.oaklandnet.com/Renew/Renew5

Powered by Fcd
Select Language | ¥

For

Hunrs

112

000088




Resident Ledger

Date: 09/15/2021

[Code 10015993 Property 0141 Lease From 12/01/2019

[Name James Beard Unit 206 Lease To 11/30/2020

Address 1470 Alice Street 206 Status Current Move In 03/15/2014
Rent 1583.75 ]Move Out

City Oakland, CA 94112 Phone (H) [Phone (w)

Date Chg Code Description Charge | Payment | Balance |Chg/Rec
03/15/2014| secdep |:Posted by QuickTrans (secdep) 1,325.00 1,325.00| 788787
03/15/2014| keydep |:Posted by QuickTrans (keydep) 50.00 1,375.00| 788800
03/15/2014 chk# :QuickTrans :Posted by QuickTrans 1,325.00 50.00| 435275
03/15/2014 chké# :QuickTrans :Posted by QuickTrans 50.00 0.00| 435289
05/01/2016 rent | Rent {05/2016) 1,261.50 1,261.50| 788763
05/12/2016 chk# 1098308504 1,261.50 0.00| 439579
06/01/2016 rent | Rent (06/2016) 1,331.50 1,331.50| 800175
06/14/2016 chk# 1098308691 1,261.50 70.00| 446359
07/01/2016 rent | Rent (07/2016) 1,331.50 1,401.50| 817155
07/05/2016 chki# 83201445 1,261.50 140.00| 450623
08/01/2016 rent | Rent (08/2016) 1,331.50 1,471.50| 832579
08/17/2016 chk# 82154280 1,261.50 210.00| 459240
09/01/2016 rent | Rent {09/2016) 1,331.50 1,541.50| 848819
09/07/2016 chkit 1379254 1,261.50 280.00| 462687
10/01/2016 rent |Rent (10/2016) 1,331.50 1,611.50| 863092
10/10/2016 chk# 11497296 1,330.50 281.00| 469959
11/01/2016 rent | Rent (11/2016) 1,400.00 1,681.00| 878313
11/09/2016 chkit 20388604 1,331.50 349.50| 476171
12/01/2016 | parking | Parking (12/2016) 77.73 427.23 | 894296
12/01/2016 rent | Rent (12/2016) 1,373.13 1,800.36| 894297
12/07/2016 chki# MO 1,468.50 331.86| 481011
01/01/2017 | parking | Parking {(01/2017) 77.73 409.59| 911166
01/01/2017 rent |Rent (01/2017) 1,373.13 1,782,72| 911167
01/10/2017 chki# 1 1,681.00 101.72 | 487837
02/01/2017 | parking | Parking (02/2017) 77.73 179.45| 926546
02/01/2017 rent | Rent {02/2017) 1,373.13 1,552.58| 926547
02/10/2017 chki# 58379392 1,400.00 152.58 | 496668
03/01/2017| parking | Parking (03/2017) 77.73 230.31| 942649
03/01/2017 rent | Rent (03/2017) 1,373.13 1,603.44| 942650
03/08/2017 chk# 65464653 1,400.00 203.44| 501824
04/01/2017| parking | Parking {(04/2017) 77.73 281.17| 960913
04/01/2017 rent | Rent (04/2017) 1,373.13 1,654.30| 960914
04/12/2017 chki 1098311832 1,400.00 254.30| 509474
05/01/2017 | parking | Parking (05/2017) 77.73 332.03| 973901
05/01/2017 rent | Rent (05/2017) 1,373.13 1,705.16 | 973902
05/26/2017 chk# 1098312341 1,400.00 305.16| 517182
06/01/2017 | parking | Parking (06/2017) 77.73 382.89| 990979
06/01/2017 rent | Rent (06/2017) 1,373.13 1,756.02 | 990980
06/09/2017 chk# 93358093 1,400.00 356.02| 520210
07/01/2017 | parking | Parking (07/2017) 77.73 433.75 | 1007209
07/01/2017 rent |Rent (07/2017) 1,373.13 1,806.88 | 1007210
07/07/2017 chk# 2379274 1,400.00 406.88| 528536
08/01/2017| parking | Parking (08/2017) 77.73 484.61 | 1022298
08/01/2017 rent | Rent (08/2017) 1,373.13 1,857.74 | 1022299
08/08/2017 chk# 11707387 1,400.00 457.74| 532575
09/01/2017| parking | Parking (09/2017) 77.73 535.47 | 1037648
09/01/2017 rent | Rent (09/2017) 1,373.13 1,908.60 | 1037665
09/01/2017 rent | To adjust rent from 12/2016-8/2017 (0.09) 1,908.51| 1043844
09/01/2017 tl | Tenant Loss - Storage Area & Screen Door ' (378.00) 1,530.51 | 1043845

000089



09/01/2017 rent | To adjust rent per rent board decision 26.54 1,557.05 | 1043846
10/01/2017| parking |Parking (10/2017) 77.73 1,634.78 | 1053960
10/01/2017 rent |Rent (10/2017) 1,399.67 3,034.45 | 1053976
10/01/2017 chk# 24899194 1,477.40| 1,557.05| 546961
10/11/2017 chk# 28834513 1,477.40 79.65| 551708
11/01/2017| parking | Parking (11/2017) 77.73 157.38 | 1070237
11/01/2017 rent |Rent (11/2017) 1,399.67 1,557.05 | 1070252
11/08/2017 chk# 42754185 1,477.40 79.65| 558711
12/01/2017| parking | Parking (12/2017) 79.28 158.93 | 1086147
12/01/2017 rbf | Rent Board Fees (12/2017) 34.00 192.93 1086171
12/01/2017 rent | Rent (12/2017) 1,400.59 1,593.52 | 1086172
12/07/2017 chk# 51668681 1,450.85 142.67 | 567273
01/01/2018 | parking | Parking (01/2018) 759.28 221.95| 1101619
01/01/2018 rent |Rent {01/2018) 1,400.59 1,622.54 11101635
01/12/2018 chki# 60698086 1,450.85 171.69| 578889
02/01/2018 | parking | Parking (02/2018) 79.28 250.97 (1117146
02/01/2018 rent | Rent (02/2018) 1,400.59 1,651.56 (1117160
02/16/2018 chk# 69383879 1,450.85 200.71| 588009
03/01/2018| parking | Parking (03/2018) 79.28 279.99| 1133074
03/01/2018 rent | Rent (03/2018) 1,400.59 1,680.58 | 1133090
03/05/2018 chk# 77527882 1,450.85 229.73 | 595003
04/01/2018 | parking | Parking {04/2018) 79.28 309.01 (1149513
04/01/2018 rent | Rent (04/2018) 1,400.59 1,709.60 | 1149529
04/05/2018 chki# 87331392 1,400.00 309.60| 599907
05/01/2018 | parking | Parking (05/2018) 79.28 388.88 116&63_3
05/01/2018 rent | Rent (05/2018) 1,400.59 1,789.47 | 1164649
05/15/2018 chkit 96711914 1,400.00 389.47| 622497
06/01/2018 | parking | Parking (06/2018) 79.28 468.75|1180261
06/01/2018 rent |Rent (06/2018) 1,400.59 1,869.34 | 1180277
06/06/2018 chk# 3945469 1,400.00 469.34| 626132
07/01/2018 | parking | Parking (07/2018) 79.28 548.62 | 1196607
07/01/2018 rent |Rent (07/2018) 1,400.59 1,949.21 | 1196623
07/01/2018 chk# 11980877 1,400.00 549.21| 633997
08/01/2018| parking | Parking (08/2018) 79.28 628.49 | 1212603
08/01/2018 rent | Rent (08/2018) 1,400.59 2,029.08 1212621
08/08/2018 chk# 216450000 1,400.00 629.08| 655963
09/01/2018 | parking | Parking (09/2018) 79.28 708.36 | 1228596
09/01/2018 rent | Rent (09/2018) 1,400.59 2,108.95| 1228614
09/10/2018 chk# 35859490 1,400.00 708.95| 664283
10/01/2018 | parking | Parking (10/2018) 79.28 788.23 | 1245259
10/01/2018 rent | Rent (10/2018) - 1,400.59 2,188.82| 1245277
10/11/2018 chkit 44813806 1,400.00 788.82| 674507
11/01/2018 | parking | Parking (11/2018) 79.28 868.10| 1261700
11/01/2018 rent |Rent {(11/2018) 1,400.59 2,268.69 1261718
11/12/2018 chki# 53231570 1,400.00 868.69 | 685007
11/27/2018 rent | To adjust rent per Rent Board (79.65) 789.04 | 1273496
12/01/2018 rbf | Rent Board Fees (12/2018) 34.00 823.04 | 1281519
12/01/2018 rent |Rent {12/2018) 1,530.19 2,353.23 1281520
12/12/2018 chk# 61004481 1,400.00 953.23 | 692671
01/01/2019 rent |Rent (01/2019) 1,530.19 2,483.42 | 1298768
01/11/2019 chkit 68286168 1,530.19 953.23| 702487
02/01/2019 rent |Rent (02/2019) 1,530.19 2,483.42 11315840
02/11/2019 chk# 7100555 1,530.19 953.23| 709954
03/01/2019 rent |Rent (03/2019) 1,530.19 2,483.42 | 1332798
03/11/2019 chki 84647070 1,480.00| 1,003.42| 719792
04/01/2019 rent |Rent (04/2019) 1,530.19 2,533.61| 1349632
04/04/2019 chk# 92689711 1,532.00| 1,001.61| 724514
05/01/2019 rent | Rent (05/2019) 1,530.19 2,531.80| 1366701
05/14/2019 chk# 775514 1,530.19| 1,001<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>